
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California  93475-0339 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666  FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.us 

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
OCSD Board Room 
 1655 Front Street 

Oceano, California 93445 
   

Wednesday, October 19, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Board Members                                                             Agencies 
John Shoals, Chair                   City of Grover Beach 
Mary Lucey, Director                  Oceano Community Services District 
Jim Hill, Director                   City of Arroyo Grande 
 
Alternate Board Members  
Matthew Guerrero, Director       Oceano Community Services District 
Tim Brown, Director       City of Arroyo Grande 
Barbara Nicolls, Director           City of Grover Beach 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. AGENDA REVIEW 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON AGENDA 
 

This public comment period is an invitation to members of the community to present 
comments, thoughts or suggestions on matters not scheduled on this agenda.  Comments 
should be limited to those matters which are within the jurisdiction of the District.  The 
Brown Act restricts the Board from taking formal action on matters not published on the 
agenda.  In response to your comments, the Chair or presiding Board Member may: 

• Direct Staff to assist or coordinate with you. 
• Direct Staff to place your issue or matter on a future Board meeting 

agenda. 
Please adhere to the following procedures when addressing the Board: 

• Comments should be limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
• Your comments should be directed to the Board as a whole and not 

directed to individual Board members. 
• Slanderous, profane or personal remarks against any Board Member, Staff 

or member of the audience shall not be permitted. 
Any writing or document pertaining to an open-session item on this agenda which is 
distributed to a majority of the Board after the posting of this agenda will be available for 

Page 1 
 

http://www.sslocsd.us/


public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed.  The writing or 
document will be available for public review in the offices of the Oceano CSD, a member 
agency located at 1655 Front Street, Oceano, California.  Consistent with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) and California Government Code §54954.2, requests for 
disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, may 
be made by a person with a disability who requires modification or accommodation in order 
to participate at the above referenced public meeting by contacting the District 
Administrator or Bookkeeper/Secretary at (805) 481-6903.  So that the District may 
address your request in a timely manner, please contact the District two business days in 
advance of the meeting. 

  
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

The following routine items listed below are scheduled for consideration as a group.  Each 
item is recommended for approval unless noted.  Any member of the public who wishes 
to comment on any Consent Agenda item may do so at this time.  Any Board Member may 
request that any item be withdrawn from the Consent Agenda to permit discussion or to 
change the recommended course of action.  The Board may approve the remainder of the 
Consent Agenda on one motion. 
 
5A.   Approval of Minutes of Meeting of October 05, 2016 
5B.  Approval of Warrants   
5C.   Financial Review at September 30, 2016 

 
6. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR AND PLANT SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT  

 
Staff recommends the Board receive and file this report. 

 
7.  ACTION ITEMS: 

 
7A. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-358, AUTHORIZING AN 
 ANNUAL TRANSFER TO A DEDICATED RESERVE ACCOUNT, AND 
 DIRECTING THE DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR TO TRANSFER MONEY PER 
 THE DISTRICT’S RESERVE POLICY 

 
Adopt Resolution No. 2016-358, authorizing annual transfers to the Reserve 
Account, and transferring $248,990 from the beginning fund balance available in 
Operating Fund 19 to new Account No. 19-1011. 

 
7B. GRIEVANCES FILED BY DISTRICT OPERATORS MR. MICHAEL ARIAS AND 

MR. MYCHAL JONES 
 

1. Public Comment. 
2. Staff Report to be made by District Administrator. 
3. Chair opens the hearing to receive evidence. 
4. After the presentations have been made, the Chair closes the hearing. 
5. The Board may ask questions of staff or the grievants. 
6. The Board retires to closed session to deliberate pursuant to Government 

Code section 54957(b)(1). 
7. The Board returns to open session to report action taken by resolution. 

 

Page 2 
 



8. CLOSED SESSION 
 

8A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT 
 

Title: Operator III  
 
8B. EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
 

 Title: District Administrator 
 

8C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of 
Section 54956.9: (one potential case). 

Closed Session Report by District Counsel 

9.  ADJOURN MEETING 
 
 The next regularly scheduled Board meeting on November 2, 2016 Oceano, California 

Page 3 
 





 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 

OCSD Board Room 
 1655 Front Street 

Oceano, California 93445 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of Wednesday October 05, 2016 
6:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

Present:  Chairman John Shoals, City of Grover Beach; Director Mary Lucey, Oceano 
Community Services District; Alternate Tim Brown, City of Arroyo Grande 

 
District Staff in Attendance: Gerhardt Hubner, District Administrator; John Clemons, 

Plant Superintendent; Wendy Stockton, District Legal 
Counsel; Amy Simpson, District Bookkeeper/Secretary 

 
2.         FLAG SALUTE 
 
3. AGENDA REVIEW  
 
 Agenda was approved as presented. 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON THE AGENDA 

 
Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
Julie Tacker spoke on the settlement.  She believes the District is not getting the best bang 
for the buck.  She distributed a 3-page letter she sent to the Central Coast Water Board 
regarding the settlement. 
 
Beatrice Spencer is dissatisfied with what was allowed to happen at the last meeting and 
the fact the Board did not stop what happened. She recommends a lesson in employee 
rights before it is allowed to happen again. 
 
Ron Arnoldson spoke to the unpermitted Administration trailer. 
 
John Carter gave a presentation on the homeless and vagrant issues near Oceano Beach.  
He asks the Board to consider installing a high chain link fence with a lockable gate to 
control access to the footbridge and the SF & FCC properties.   
 
Chairman Shoals closed the public comment. 
 
The Board asked staff to check District property lines and work with Mr. Carter to 
investigate if a fence is a viable alternative. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
5A.   Approval of Minutes of Meeting of September 21, 2016 
5B.  Approval of Warrants   
 
Chairman Shoals spoke to public comment on Item 7B.  He asked for change in the 
minute’s language where stated that a motion that the Board formally repudiate Director 
Lucey comments was made, since no second occurred on that motion. 
 

  Item 5A Page 1 
 



 
Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
Julie Tacker asked that the minutes capture the comments from the community.  She 
asked for the original email with the origin and the banner that is Attachment No. 4 of the 
minutes.  She spoke about the Downey Brand, Lara HR Services, Gerhardt Hubner and 
Water System Consulting warrants.  She looks forward to the report from WSC. 
 
Chairman Shoals closed the public comment. 
 
 Motion:   Alternate Brown 
 Second:  Director Lucey 
 Action:    Approved unanimously by roll call vote.  
 

6. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR AND PLANT SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT  
 

District Administrator Hubner presented this report giving updates on the RWQCB and 
District Settlement of the 2010 Spill, Cherry Ave Bridge Project, Grit Removal System, 
Mechanical Bar Screen, Secondary Process Redundancy Project, Satellite Water 
Resource Recovery Facilities Grant, temporary construction trailer for administration 
space and Regional Efforts. 
 
Superintendent Clemons presented the Superintendent’s report.  He highlighted the cost 
savings in the reduction of chlorine.  He presented results from ocean sampling taken at 
the District’s outfall. 
 
Chairman Shoals opened public comment period. 
 
Julie Tacker spoke to certification of staff and promotional process.  She also feels permit 
applications have been submitted that are incomplete and inaccurate.   
 
Chairman Shoals closed the public comment. 

  
Action:  The Board received and filed this report. 

 
7. ACTION ITEMS: 

 
  7A.  REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED WITH CONTRACT WITH 

 BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES, TO ASSIST WITH FINANCIAL PORTION OF 
 STATE REVOLVING FUND CONSTRUCTION LOAN APPLICATION AND TO 
 PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL ALTERNATIVES FOR FUNDING THE 
 DISTRICT’S REDUNDANCY PROJECT 

  
 District Administrator Hubner presented this item in power point.  He gave background 

information from the Wastewater Financial Plan and Rate Study conducted by Bartle Wells 
in 2016.  He noted the Board passed a rate increase that included debt service for a future 
State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan that would be used to fund the Redundancy Project.  He 
highlighted Task A, which involves financial assistance for SRF construction loan financing 
and Task B which identifies and evaluates financing alternatives.  Both these tasks would 
be completed by the end of January 2017 under the BWA proposal. 

  
Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period.  
 
Julie Tacker believes the application for Coastal Commission and application for SRF loan 
appear to speak of two different projects.   
 

  Item 5A Page 2 
 



 
Chairman Shoals closed the public comment. 

  
Motion:  Director Lucey moved to authorize the District Administrator to proceed 
to execute a contract with Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) for professional 
consultant services to complete the financing portion for a State Revolving Fund 
loan construction application package.  
Second:  Chairman Shoals  
Action:  Motion approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
 

7B.   NEWLY INSTALLED SCADA SYSTEM PROJECT 
 
Superintendent Clemons gave a verbal presentation on the Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition project. This is a project that has been in the works since 1999.  The budget 
was $110,000 in 2010.  To date, the project has spent $99,000.  Operational staff has 
been involved in the process since 2013.  The benefit being, this system will be owned 
and maintained by the staff using it on a daily basis.  Two components still needed are 
historian software to preserve trend charts and software for alarm dial out needs. 
  
Chairman Shoals opened the item to public comment. 
 
Ron Arnoldson and Beatrice Spencer both recognized the value of District staff for keeping 
this project in house. 
 
Chairman Shoals closed the public comment. 
 
 Action:  The Board received and filed this report. 

 
8. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
 
 Letter received from Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Re: No 
 Paid Property/Liability Claims in 2015-16 
 
 Julie Tacker read the first paragraph of this letter which “acknowledged the dedicated 
 efforts of the Governing Body, management and staff towards proactive risk management 
 and loss prevention training.” 
 
9.  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - PENDING LITIGATION 
 Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 
 54956.9: (one case).  

 Legal Counsel Stockton announced Closed Session and provided a memo that 
 documents the District received this threat of litigation outside of a public meeting. 

 Julie Tacker spoke to the agenda item Anticipated Litigation and Legal Counsel 
 announced Pending Litigation.   

10. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION; REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  

 Legal Counsel Stockton announced that the Board heard a report from legal counsel, took 
 direction from the Board and had no reportable action. 
 
10.  ADJOURN MEETING 
 

  Item 5A Page 3 
 



 
 This meeting adjourned at 8:20 pm. 
 
The next regularly scheduled Board meeting on October 19, 2016, 6 pm at the Oceano 
Community Service District Board Room, 1655 Front Street, Oceano, California 

 
 
 
THESE MINUTES ARE DRAFT AND NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AT A SUBSEQUENT MEETING. 

  Item 5A Page 4 
 





BUDGET LINE ITEM WARRANT NO. ACCT ACCT BRKDN TOTAL

ABALONE COAST ANALYTICAL CHEMICAL ANALYSIS 16-3898 101916-1662 7078 95.00 95.00
AGP VIDEO PROF. SERVICES SEPTEMBER 1663 7080 1,327.50 1,327.50
AIRFLOW FILTER SERVICES EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 33911 1664 8030 15.32 15.32
ALLIED ADMINISTRATORS EMPLOYEE DENTAL NOVEMBER 1665 6025 862.26 862.26
ARAMARK UNIFORMS 09/30/16; 10/07/16 1666 7025 361.63 361.63
AT&T TELEPHONES SEPTEMBER 1667 7013 298.97 298.97
AUTOSYS, INC. SCADA 952; 953; 954 1668 20-8010 9,530.00 9,530.00
BANK OF THE WEST MEETINGS HUBNER 1669 7050 294.81 8,830.39

CHERRY AVE BRIDGE PROJECT NOI 26-8065 2,260.25
OFFICE SUPPLIES OFFICE DEPOT 8045 925.09
ADMIN OFFICE SPACE TRI COUNTIES FURNITURE 7040 3,956.10
FEES FINANCE CHARGE 7068 71.90
FUEL FUEL 8020 203.16
TRAINING CLEMONS, DE LEON, SIMPSON 7067 997.29
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE RYAN HERCO MOTORS 8030 121.79

BRENNTAG PLANT CHEMICALS BPI662828;BPI659428 1670 8050 4,550.71 4,550.71
BRIAN BOILER WORKS EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE BOILER PART 1671 8030 1,866.37 1,866.37
CARQUEST EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 878915; 868963 1672 8030 68.83 68.83
CARRS BOOTS UNIFORMS 0094507; 0094508 1673 7025 250.00 250.00
CENTRAL COAST FENCE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 77896 1674 8030 709.60 709.60
CENTRAL COAST TECHNOLOGY ADMIN OFFICE SPACE 602 1675 7040 220.00 330.00

COMPUTER SUPPORT 628 7082 110.00
COASTLINE EQUIPMENT EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE FRONTLOADER 1676 8030 440.13 440.13
CULLIGAN CCWT EQUIPMENT RENTAL 38030 1677 7032 60.00 60.00
CULLIGAN SANTA MARIA EQUIPMENT RENTAL 62428 1678 7032 17.50 17.50
ENGEL & GRAY BIOSOLIDS HANDLING 77678 1679 7085 3,505.50 3,505.50
EVERYWHERE RIGHT NOW, INC COMPUTER SUPPORT WEBSITE 1680 7082 2,000.00 2,000.00
FED EX CHEMICAL ANALYSIS TESTING 1681 7078 46.65 46.65
FRUIT GROWERS LABORATORY CHEMICAL ANALYSIS BIOSOLIDS MONITORING 1682 7078 2,091.00 2,091.00
GARING TAYLOR ASSOC. CHERRY AVE BRIDGE PROJECT 13896 1683 26-8065 1,360.84 1,360.84
GILBERT TRUJILLO GENERAL LEGAL SERVICES SEPTEMBER 1684 7071 13,107.50 13,107.50
GRAINGER TOOLS 9240529215 1685 8055 32.49 32.49
I.I. SUPPLY EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 41302 1686 8030 75.20 75.20
JB DEWAR FUEL 86240 1687 8020 163.33 163.33
JESSICA MATSON WEBSITE SEPTEMBER 1688 7065 300.00 300.00
KENNEDY JENKS REDUNDANCY PROJECT 105227 1689 20-7080 1,930.00 1,930.00
LEXIS NEXIS SUBSCRIPTION SEPTEMBER 1690 7071 250.00 250.00
MICHAEL K NUNLEY GIS IMPLEMENTATION 2590 1691 7015 305.94 1,180.94

BIOSOLIDS HANDLING FACILITY 2633 7077 875.00
MINERS EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SEPTEMBER 1692 8035 293.33 293.33
OCSD WATER 07/18/16-09/18/16 1693 7094 285.00 285.00
PG&E ELECTRICITY 09/09/16-10/09/16 1694 7091 13,608.45 13,608.45
READY REFRESH HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES SEPTEMBER 1695 8035 104.66 104.66
R.F. MCDONALD CO. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 234230 1696 8030 2,102.08 2,102.08
RS FIRE PROTECTION SAFETY SUPPLIES SCS91916 1697 8056 18.00 18.00
SDRMA INSURANCE ADDITIONAL INSURED 1698 7043 169.14 169.14
SLO COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR ZONE 1/1A PROPERTY TAX FY 16/17 1699 7095 29,180.80 29,180.80
SO CAL GAS GAS SEPTEMBER 1700 7092 1,257.60 1,257.60
SO. CO. SANITARY SERV. GARBAGE OCTOBER 1701 7093 112.80 112.80
SPEISS CONSTRUCTION CO. INC. GRIT REMOVAL 216155 1702 20-8015 47,955.24 47,955.24
SPRINT CELL PHONES SEPTEMBER 1703 7011 221.09 221.09
STANLEY SECURITY ALARMS NOVEMBER 1704 7011 64.06 64.06
STATE FUND WORK COMP INSURANCE PREMIUM OCTOBER 1705 6080 5,580.67 5,580.67
TELEDYNE INSTRUMENTS ISCO SAMPLER S020145006 1706 26-8065 6,170.50 6,170.50
USA BLUEBOOK SAFETY SUPPLIES 078917; 078915 1707 8056 74.24 209.21

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 080128 8030 134.97
WENDY STOCKTON, ESQ. LEGAL COUNSEL SEPTEMBER 1708 7071 4,987.50 4,987.50
WEST COAST INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE FFR BYPASS PROJECT 1709 8030 454.77 454.77
WILLIAM JACKMAN MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT FY 16/17 1710 6075 500.00 500.00
SUB TOTAL 168,932.56$    168,932.56$   

SO. SLO CO. SANITATION DISTRICT RABOBANK REIMB. FOR SEPT. WEBHOSTING 1711 7011 165.35 79,074.44
PAYROLL 59,743.71

CALPERS RETIREMENT 6060 19,165.38
SUB TOTAL 79,074.44$      79,074.44$     

SO SLO CO SAN DIST. REIMB PAYROLL MEMO 09/30/16 $28,842.04

GRAND TOTAL 248,007.00$    248,007.00$   

We hereby certify that the demands numbered serially from 101916-1662 to 101916-1711 together with the supporting evidence 
have been examined, and that they comply with the requirements of the SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION
DISTRICT.  The demands are hereby approved by motion of the SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT,  
together with warrants authorizing and ordering the issuance of checks numbered identically with the particular demands and
warrants.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: DATE:

Chairman Board Member

Board Member Secretary

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT
WARRANT REGISTER
10/19/2016  FY 2016/17





 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California  93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Place, Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666  FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
              
 
 
Date:  October 19, 2016 
 
To:  Board of Directors  
 
From:  Amy Simpson, District Bookkeeper/Secretary 
 
Via:  Gerhardt Hubner, District Administrator 
 
Subject: Financial Review as of September 30, 2016 
 
 
Overall Financial Summary 
 
As of September 30, 2016, the District has received total revenues of $995,624.  Of this 
amount, $952,732 is for operating revenues, and $42,892 is for non-operating revenues.  
 
District operating expenses as of this date totaled $1,288,995.  Operating expenses totaled 
$661,969 and non-operating expenses totaled $627,027 as of September 30, 2016. 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
The balance in the District’s LAIF account was $2,422,794 as of September 30, 2016.   
 
County of San Luis Obispo Treasury Pool 
 
As of September 30, 2016, the reconciled cash balance with the County of San Luis Obispo 
Treasury Pool was $2,388,631. The County issues the majority of the District’s checks, and the 
majority of the District’s revenues are deposited with this agency.  As such, the County provides 
‘banking services’ to the District and provides some accounting documents for internal control 
purposes. 
 
Rabobank Funds 
 
At September 30, 2016, the reconciled cash balance in the District’s Rabobank account totaled 
$197,487.  This account has been used to process the District’s contracted payroll provider 
service and other District expenditures.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 5C Page 1



 
 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION 
DISTRICT 
MONTHLY CASH REPORT SEPTEMBER 2016 

   
 

Cash Balance at 08/31/16        5,654,813.43  

   
 

Deposits  $         20,552.71  

 
Warrant Register 09/07/16 (114,368.73) 

 
Warrant Register 09/21/16 (473,011.68) 

 
Pay Roll 09/02/16 (28,744.38) 

 
Pay Roll 09/16/16 (30,999.33) 

 
CalPers Retirement (19,165.38) 

 
Rabobank September Activity (165.35) 

 
Total September Activity          (645,902.14) 

   
   
 

Cash Balance at 09/30/16        5,008,911.29  

   
   
   

 
Cash by Institution 

CASH BALANCE @ 
09/30/2016 

 
Cash with County Treasury 2,388,630.98  

 
Cash with LAIF 2,422,793.58  

 
Cash with Rabobank 197,486.73  

  
 $    5,008,911.29  

 

Item 5C Page 2





 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
 
 
 

             
 
Date:     October 19, 2016 
 
To:        Board of Directors 
 
From:   Gerhardt Hubner, District Administrator & John Clemons, District Superintendent 
 
Subject: DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR AND PLANT SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
Today’s report presents ongoing information on latest Direct staff activities of possible interest to 
the Board and members of the public, project updates, regional efforts, our regular Superintendent 
report, and operation and maintenance activities.  Updates since the last report are provided in 
italics below: 
 
RWQCB and District Settlement of 2010 Spill 
As announced at the August 3rd Board Meeting, the RWQCB and the District has agreed to settle 
their litigation over the Administrative Civil Liability (ACL) penalty issued to the District regarding 
the 2010 Spill at the District’s facility.  Both parties agreed to resolve this matter without further 
litigation and without an admission of liability for the $1,109,812.80 ACL penalty amount, with 
approximately 50% of the total penalty amount going towards regional and local projects, 
including two supplemental environmental, and one enhanced. 
 
A Final Order, signed by both parties, was circulated by the RWQCB on October 13th.  That version 
with cover letter is attached (Attachment No. 1).  The Final Order has a few minor changes (vs. 
the Draft Order) to allow flexibility to the North Cities Management Group and County in the 
development of a groundwater model (supplemental project under Settlement) for the Santa Maria 
basin.   No other changes were made due to comments received. 
 
The next steps will be for District Special Counsel to prepare a request for dismissal for 
submission to the Superior Court.  The District then has 30 days after the entry of an Order of 
Dismissal for transmitting payment for the penalty and supplemental projects. 
 
Project Updates: 
   
· Cherry Ave. Arroyo Grande Sewer Bridge Project – The purpose of this project is to 

perform regular maintenance on the existing structure, remove paint and debris and replace 
its anti-corrosion coating.  At the Board’s September 7th Board meeting the Board approved 
the Mitigated Negative Declaration for this project.  A completed Notice of Determination has 
been filed with the County of San Luis Obispo, and necessary permit applications to the CA 

Item 6, Page 1 
 



Department of Fish and Wildlife, and Regional Water Quality Control Board.  The later agency 
had additional questions and staff provided a revised form and description. 
  

· Grit Removal System – On April 28, 2016, the Board approved a contract with Spiess 
Construction Company for $492,100.  Engineered filled has now been placed, and concrete 
pouring for the foundation continues. It is anticipated that installation of the equipment will 
commence in the next few weeks. 
 

· Mechanical Bar Screen – At the September 7th Board meeting, the Board approved an award 
of contract for this project.  It is anticipated that a Notice to Proceed will be issued to the 
contractor shortly. 

    
· Secondary Process Redundancy Project – On March 16, 2016, the Board approved a 

design contract with Kennedy Jenks for Phase I of this project.  On August 5, 2016, a cover 
letter outlining our response(s) to the Coastal Commission staff’s April 15th letter to our Coastal 
Development Permit application was sent to Coastal Commission staff, including five 
attachments (which included site plans, biological surveys, sea level rise analysis, flood risk 
mitigation strategy, and site photos).  Subsequently on August 16th, upon receipt by us, a 
one-page form from the County of San Luis Obispo on its permitting determination was 
transmitted to Coastal Commission staff. 

 
At the September 7th Board meeting, the Board approved an Addendum to the 2010 Mitigation 
Negative Declaration. This action updated the Redundancy Project’s CEQA status.   
Subsequently, on September 9, 2016, we transmitted this Addendum, and supplemental 
information requested by Coastal Commission staff, via a cover letter.  On October 13, 2016, 
we received a response from Coastal Commission staff to our September 8th submittal 
(Attachment No. 2).  Staff has reviewed the letter, and is already working with our consultants 
in preparing a response to the two issues identified in the letter. 
 
State Revolving Funding (SRF) Loan Program - On August 30th, District staff participated in 
three meetings in Sacramento with SWRCB Division of Financial Assistance staff.  At the 
October 5th Board meeting, the Board approved authorization to proceed with a contract with 
Bartle Wells Associates for assistance in preparing the financial package and evaluating other 
financial options.  A conference call was held with BWA this week to kick off this effort. 

 
· Satellite Water Resource Recovery Facilities Grant – The Board approved a re-scoping of 

this grant funded project at its March 30, 2016. Regular monthly meetings are held with the 
consultant and City of Arroyo Grande staff, where project schedule, milestone and progress 
on report components are discussed.  District staff met face to face in Sacramento in late 
August with the SWRCB’s grant project manager to discuss the re-scoping of this study, its 
deliverable schedule, and overall purpose of the study in conjunction with ongoing regional 
recycling efforts in south San Luis Obispo County.  A meeting to discuss progress on the 
study/grant was held on October 4th in Arroyo Grande.  A workshop on the draft Report is 
tentatively planned for the Board’s December 7th meeting. 
 

· Energy Cost Reduction/Conservation Project, Co-Generation Unit – Staff continue to 
work with representatives of PG&E, MKN and Envise on the feasibility of a co-generation 
system at the District’s facility. Significant benefits of a co-generation system may include 
future saving on facility electricity costs, and a reduced carbon footprint (eliminated 
flare)/greenhouse gases.  On August 30th, the District’s Plant Superintendent attended and 

Item 6, Page 2 
 



was provided a tour of a similar PG&E co-generation project recently constructed and 
operating at the City of San Luis Obispo WWTP. 

 
· District Control Building and Office – Significant issues and problems are evident in the 

District’s Operational and Administrative Building.  Identified issues include: Strong and 
persistent odors, noise and disruption from brine disposal trucks, multiple leaks in the 
ceiling/roof, mold, old desks and chairs (some decades old), old and stained carpets and 
flooring, infestation of pests, bubbling and peeling paint, break room/kitchen deterioration, 
identified leaks in the indoor plumbing, insufficient and overlapping utilization of space for 
administration vs. operations, IT integration, file storage, and others. 
 
On August 11th, a temporary construction trailer for administrative staff was delivered to the 
plant site, adjacent to the C-Train (containing a majority of the District’s files). A completed 
CDP application was submitted to Coastal Commission staff in compliance with local and state 
requirements.  Staff continues to research and meet with individuals that can shed light on 
historical permitting (or exemptions or waivers) of past projects at the District WWTP site from 
either the County of San Luis Obispo or Coastal Commission. 

 
Regional Efforts 
 
· Arroyo Grande Watershed MOU Group – In 2006, various parties, including the District 

entered into a Memorandum of Understanding. The purpose of this watershed group is to 
develop programs and policies for the maintenance, protection, and enhancement of Arroyo 
Grande Watershed and creeks within the Watershed. Unfortunately, staff was not able to 
attend the most recent meeting held on September 28th.  
 

· Zone 1-1A Flood Control Advisory Committee – The Committee is focused on the goal to 
provide input and coordination on proposed improvement and maintenance of the Zone 1/1A 
flood facilities, working with the Coastal San Luis Resource Conservation District. At the June 
15th Board meeting, the Board approved District staff participation.  The next meeting of this 
committee is scheduled for October 18th at the Oceano CSD office with updates on annual 
channel maintenance, Waterway Management Program projects, and the long term rain 
forecast. 
 

· Integrated Water Resource Management (IRWM) – Integrated Regional Water Management 
(IRWM) is a collaborative effort with the County of San Luis Obispo to manage all aspects of 
water resources on a region wide scale that: 
 

o Crosses jurisdictional, watershed, and political boundaries 
o Involves multiple agencies, stakeholders, individuals, and groups 
o Addresses regional issues and differing perspectives of all the entities involved 

through mutually beneficial solutions. 
o Develops multi-benefit solutions 

 
At the July 6th Board meeting the Board approved the District’s participation in the IRWM 
program through adoption of a Resolution and becoming signatory under the existing 
Memorandum of Understanding. The Water Resource Advisory Committee held its latest 
meeting on October 5th, where a groundwater basin characterization through use of various 
geophysical methods was presented.  The next meeting of the IRWM group is scheduled for 
November 2, 2016. 

Item 6, Page 3 
 



 
· Water Reuse, Central Coast Chapter - The Association is a not-for-profit association (501c6) 

of utilities, government agencies and industry that advocates for laws, policies and funding to 
promote water reuse. The Water Reuse Association provides a comprehensive and 
complementary approach to increasing water reuse in California.  The next meeting will be 
November 15th and will include a presentation on direct potable reuse (DPR). 
 

· North Cities Management Area Technical Group - The NCMA TG, which includes 
representatives from the Cities of Arroyo Grande, Grover Beach, Pismo Beach, and the 
Oceano Community Services District, was formed as a result of the Santa Maria Groundwater 
Basin (SMGB) Adjudication. This group is exploring various ways to protect and enhance 
future water supplies in the basin through groundwater monitoring, and the collection and 
analyzing of data pertinent to water supply and demand.  At the meetings, group members 
share hydrologic and water resources data and information, and water conservation efforts.   
Recent efforts have been concentrated on how to coordinate efforts on a comprehensive 
groundwater model for the Santa Maria groundwater basin between various parties, and how 
best to leverage the District’s supplemental environmental project funds associated with this 
effort. In this regard the group recently submitted a joint comment letter to the RWQCB (see 
discussion above under 2010 Spill Litigation).   

 
· Regional Groundwater Sustainability Project: Staff participates in meeting with the various 

cities to collaborate one a potential regional recycling project in the South San Luis Obispo 
county and how might the District participate.  The third meeting of this group was held on 
October 12th in Grover Beach, with topics that included updates on a collaboration structure, 
efforts to develop a groundwater model, a joint EIR, and the site selection process.  District 
staff was asked and provided an update on progress with our recycling grant study. 

 
· Countywide Water Action Team/Water Management Efforts:  A Countywide Water Action 

Team has formed, with water managers throughout San Luis Obispo County convening to 
discuss and collaborate on water supply management solutions, especially in light of the 
severe drought. The next meeting is scheduled for December 16th.  

 
· Outreach Initiative – The District Administrator provided a formal presentation on the District 

and its initiatives to the Arroyo Grande City Council on July 26th, the Oceano CSD on July 
27th, and the Regional Water Quality Control Board on July 28th. At the September 21, 2016 
Board meeting the Board approved moving forward with distribution of our Fall 2016 
Newsletter.  Staff have approached each of our member agencies and are working with them 
on how best to include this newsletter with their utility bills.  A draft flyer for the Oceano 
community highlighting the Redundancy project is also under review. 

 
The website overhaul continues, with content mitigation the latest effort.  The end of October 
is still the target date for going live.   Staff intents to bring a demonstration of the new website 
to the Board at one of its November Board meetings. 
 

· Record’s Management Initiative – As a first step, staff have recently compiled several other 
agencies’ Record’s Retention Policies.  We intend to evaluate them and compare them to the 
District’s existing Record Retention Policy, and at some future date, come to the Board with 
an updated Policy for consideration.  

 
 

Item 6, Page 4 
 



Superintendent’s Report 
 
During this reporting period (October 1st through October 12th) the District’s facility continues to 
regularly meet its Permit Limitations as required under the State of California’s National Pollution 
Elimination Discharge (NPDES) Permit issued to the District. All process values (lab test results) 
were within permit limits.  

 
Plant Data (Data as Available October 12), 2016 

 
October 
2016 
 

INF 
Flow 
MGD 

Peak 
Flow
MGD 

INF 
BOD 
  mg/L 

EFF 
BOD 
mg/L 

INF 
TSS 
  mg/L 

EFF 
TSS 
  mg/L 

Fecal 
Coli 

Cl2 
lbs/day 

BOD 
REM 
Eff.% 

Average 2.24 3.52 481 26 439 27 5 173 94 
High 2.47 4.1 497 27 446 29 13 250  
Limit 5.0   40/60/90  40/60/90 2000  80 

 CY 2015 
Monthly 

         

Average 2.17 3.42 415 29 438 36 67 194 93 

High 2.42 4.8 495 43 494 47 255 402  

**Limit – 40/60/90 represent NPDES Permit limits for the monthly average, weekly average, and 
instantaneous value for plant effluent BOD and TSS. 
 
Operation and Maintenance Projects 

· Installed new security key pad at front gate. 
· Replaced pump in storm drain #3. 
· Vacuumed out storm drain sumps in Plant. 
· Repaired field sump piping. 
· Serviced pumps and portable generators. 
· Installed ISCO flowmeter in sewer manhole. 

Training 
· Staff attended a training session titled Manage For Success. This session is based on 

training materials from Cal. State Univ., Sacramento. 
· Staff attended training session on Arc Flash Training. 

Call Outs 
· 10/1/2016, 1630 – Multiple alarms due to power failure. Operator III Mui responded. Reset 

alarms and equipment. Regular power was restored within 15 minutes. Inspected Plant. 
Superintendent responded also. 

· 10/11/2016, 1237 – Secondary sludge pump #1 failed. Operator III Jones responded. 
Alarm reset. 

 
 

Item 6, Page 5 
 



 
 
 

 

October 13, 2016 
 
Gerhardt Hubner, General Manager 
South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District 
Gerhardt@sslocsd.us 
 

 

Dear Mr. Hubner: 
 
TRANSMITTAL OF SIGNED STIPULATED ORDER NO. R3-2016-0045, SETTLEMENT 
AGREEMENT AND STIPULATION FOR ENTRY OF ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY 
ORDER NO. R3-2012-0041, SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
 
Attached is a signed copy of the subject order.  This letter also transmits to you and interested 
parties Central Coast Water Board staff’s responses to comments received on the proposed 
order during the prior public comment period.  We appreciate your willingness to help find a 
meaningful and appropriate resolution to this case.   
 
If you have any question, please contact Harvey Packard at (805) 542-4639 or 
Harvey.packard@waterboards.ca.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
John M. Robertson 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachments: 

1. Stipulated Order No. R3-2016-0045 
2. Response to Comments 

 
cc: Brad Snook, Surfrider Foundation San Luis Obispo, chair@slo.surfrider.org 

Jeff Edwards and Julie Tacker, jhedwardscompany@gmail.com 
Paavo Ogren, Oceano CSD, paavo@oceanocsd.org 
Geoff English, Arroyo Grande, genglish@arroyogrande.org 
Benjamin Fine, Pismo Beach, bfine@PismoBeach.org 
Greg Ray, Grover Beach, gray@grover.org 
Daniel Heimel, WSC, dheimel@wsc-inc.com 
Wade Horton, SLO County, whorton@co.slo.ca.us 
Courtney Howard, SLO County, choward@co.slo.ca.us 
Todd Stanley, Central Coast Water Board 
Katie Disimone, Central Coast Water Board 
 

 

r:\rb3\shared\npdes\facilities\san luis obispo\south slo co\lawsuit re acl 2012\settlement docs\modified\sslocsd final stipulated order modified transmittal.docx 
ECM# 631801 

Item 6 Attachment No. 1 Page 001

mailto:Gerhardt@sslocsd.us
mailto:Harvey.packard@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:chair@slo.surfrider.org
mailto:jhedwardscompany@gmail.com
mailto:paavo@oceanocsd.org
mailto:genglish@arroyogrande.org
mailto:bfine@PismoBeach.org
mailto:gray@grover.org
mailto:dheimel@wsc-inc.com
mailto:whorton@co.slo.ca.us
mailto:choward@co.slo.ca.us


� � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � �� �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � � �� �  ! � " # # $ " % " & # � ' ( " " % " & # ) & * � #  + , $ ) #  - & . - ( " & # ( / - . � * %  &  ! # ( ) #  0 " �  0  $ �  ) 1  $  # /� ( * " ( 2 � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( - ( � ( * " ( 3  ! " & # " ( " *  & # - 1 / ) & * 1 " # 4 " " & # � " � ) $  . - ( &  )� " '  - & ) $ 
 ) # " ( � , ) $  # / � - & # ( - $ � - ) ( * 5 � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # � " '  - & 2 � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " (� - ) ( * 3 ) & * � - , # � � ) & � ,  ! � 1  ! + - � - , & # / � ) &  # ) #  - & �  ! # (  6 # 2 �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( 3 2 6 - $ $ " 6 #  0 " $ /7 & - 4 & ) ! # � " � ) ( #  " ! 3 5 + , ( ! , ) & # # - 	 - 0 " ( & % " & # � - * " ! " 6 #  - & � � � � � � � � �� � � & � 6 # - 1 " ( � 5 � � � � 5 # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * ) * - + # " * � * %  &  ! # ( ) #  0 " �  0  $�  ) 1  $  # / � ( * " ( � - � � � � � � � � � � � � � 5  & 6 $ , * " *  & # �  ! � ( * " ( ) ! � 8 �  1  # � �� � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( + " #  #  - & " * # � " � # ) # " 
 ) # " ( � " ! - , ( 6 " ! � - & # ( - $ � - ) ( * . - ( ( " 0  " 4 - .� ( * " ( � - � � � � � � � � � � � � � - & � - 0 " % 1 " ( � 5 � � � � � � & � 6 # - 1 " ( � � 5 � � � � 5 # � " � # ) # "
 ) # " ( � " ! - , ( 6 " ! � - & # ( - $ � - ) ( * * " 6 $  & " * # - 6 - & !  * " ( # � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( 9 ! + " #  #  - & � � &� - 0 " % 1 " ( � � 5 � � � � 5 # � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( .  $ " * ) + " #  #  - & . - ( 4 (  # - . ) * %  &  ! # ( ) #  0 "% ) & * ) % , ! ) & * 6 - % + $ )  & # . - ( * " 6 $ ) ( ) # - ( / ( " $  " .  & � ) & � ,  ! � 1  ! + - � - , & # /� , + " (  - ( � - , ( # 2 � - , # � � ) & � ,  ! � 1  ! + - � - , & # / � ) &  # ) #  - & �  ! # (  6 # 0 � � # ) # " 
 ) # " (� " ! - , ( 6 " ! � - & # ( - $ � - ) ( * " # ) $ � 5 � ) ! " � - � � � � � � � � : � 3 � � & � " 1 ( , ) ( / : 5 � � � � 5 # � ") 6 #  - & 4 ) ! # ( ) & ! . " ( ( " * # - � ) 6 ( ) % " & # - � - , & # / � , + " (  - ( � - , ( # ) & * ) ! !  ' & " * 6 ) ! "& , % 1 " ( � � � � � � � � ; � � � � � � � �� � � � " � ) ( #  " ! � ) 0 " " & ' ) ' " *  & 6 - & .  * " & #  ) $ ! " # # $ " % " & # & " ' - #  ) #  - & ! ) & * ) ' ( " " # -! " # # $ " # � " % ) # # " ( 1 / + ( " ! " & #  & ' # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( # - # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " (� - ) ( * 5 - (  # ! * " $ " ' " " 5 . - ( ) * - + #  - & ) ! ) & - ( * " ( 1 / ! " # # $ " % " & # + , ( ! , ) & # # -	 - 0 " ( & % " & # � - * " ! " 6 #  - & � � � � � � � � �� � � � " � ) ( #  " ! ) ( " ) ' ( " "  & ' # - ( " ! - $ 0 " # �  ! % ) # # " ( 4  # � - , # . , ( # � " ( $  #  ' ) #  - & ) & * 4  # � - , #) & ) * %  ! !  - & - . $  ) 1  $  # / . - ( < � 5 � � : 5 ; � � � ; � 5 4  # � ) + - ( #  - & - . # � " ! " # # $ " % " & #+ ( - 6 " " * ! ' -  & ' # - 4 ) ( * # 4 - ! , + + $ " % " & # ) $ " & 0  ( - & % " & # ) $ + ( - = " 6 # ! 2 � � � ! 3 ) & * ) &" & � ) & 6 " * 6 - % + $  ) & 6 " ) 6 #  - & 2 � � � 3 � � � " + ( - + - ! " * � � � ! ) & * � � � ) ( " ) # # ) 6 � " *� " ( " # - ) ! � 8 �  1  # ! � 5 � 5 ) & * � �� � " � ) ( #  " ! ! #  + , $ ) # " # - # � " . - $ $ - 4  & ' >
Item 6 Attachment No. 1 Page 002



� #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( � - � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� - , # � � ) & � ,  ! � 1  ! + - � - , & # / � ) &  # ) #  - & �  ! # (  6 #
� � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( � " ( " 1 / ) ' ( " " ! # - # � "  % + - !  #  - & - . ) * %  &  ! # ( ) #  0 " 6  0  $ $  ) 1  $  # /# - # ) $  & ' � � - # % - ( " # � ) & � � * ) / ! ) . # " ( # � " " & # ( / - . ) & � ( * " (- . *  ! %  ! ! ) $ 1 / # � " � ) 6 ( ) % " & # - � - , & # / � , + " (  - ( � - , ( # - . 6 ) ! " & , % 1 " ( � � � � � � � �; � � � � � � � 5 # � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ! � ) $ $ + ) / 1 / 6 � " 6 7 # - # � " � # ) # " 
 ) # " ( � " ! - , ( 6 " !� - & # ( - $ � - ) ( * � $ " ) & , + ) & * � 1 ) # " % " & # � 6 6 - , & # - & " � � ) $ . - . # �  ! ) % - , & # 5  � " � 5< � � � 5 : � � � � � � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ! � ) $ $  & *  6 ) # " - & # � " 6 � " 6 7 # � " & , % 1 " ( - . # �  !� #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( ) & * ! " & *  # # - # � " � # ) # " 
 ) # " ( � " ! - , ( 6 " ! � - & # ( - $ � - ) ( * 5� 6 6 - , & #  & ' � . .  6 " ! 5 � # # & > � � � � ) / % " & # 5 � � � � � - 8 � ; ; ; 5 � ) 6 ( ) % " & # - 5 � � : � ; � � �� ; ; ; 5 ) & * ! � ) $ $ ! " & * ) 6 - + / - . # � " 6 � " 6 7 # - ? " ! !  6 ) ? ) � ( 5 � # ) # " 
 ) # " ( � " ! - , ( 6 " !� - & # ( - $ � - ) ( * 5 � . .  6 " - . � �  " . � - , & ! " $ 5 � � � � � - 8 � � � 5 � ) 6 ( ) % " & # - 5 � � : � ; � � �� � � � �

� � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ) ' ( " " ! # - . , & * � � � � � � 	 � �  & # � " ) % - , & # - . < � � � 5 : ; � � � ; � � � "� ( - = " 6 #  ! * " ! 6 (  1 " *  & � 8 �  1  # � � � � � � � � 	 � �  ! ) * %  &  ! # ( ) #  0 " $ / . , & * " * 1 / # � "� ) / � - , & * ) #  - & - . � - ( ( - � ) / 5 ) & - & � + ( - .  # # �  ( * � + ) ( # / - ( ' ) &  @ ) #  - & � � � "�  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( 9 ! $  ) 1  $  # / . - ( # �  ! ) % - , & #  ! * " " % " * ( " ! - $ 0 " * , + - & + ) / % " & # # - # � " � ) /� - , & * ) #  - & - . � - ( ( - � ) / �� � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ) ' ( " " ! # - 6 - & # (  1 , # " < � � � 5 : � � � � � # - 4 ) ( * * " 0 " $ - +  & ' )' ( - , & * 4 ) # " ( 1 ) !  & % - * " $ . - ( # � " � - ( # � " ( & �  #  " ! � ) & ) ' " % " & # � ( " ) ) & * �  + - % -� " ! ) � ) & ) ' " % " & # � ( " ) - . # � " � ) & # ) � ) (  ) 	 ( - , & * 4 ) # " ( � ) !  & � � � " * ( ) . # ! 6 - + "- . # � " + ( - = " 6 # ) & * ! 6 � " * , $ " ) ( " * " ! 6 (  1 " *  & � 8 �  1  # � � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( 4  $ $ ! , 1 %  #) 6 � " 6 7 . - ( < � � � 5 : � � � � � # - # � " � ) / � - , & * ) #  - & - . � - ( ( - � ) / . - ( # � " + , ( + - ! " ! - .. , & *  & ' # � " ' ( - , & * 4 ) # " ( 1 ) !  & % - * " $ . - ( # � " � - ( # � " ( & �  #  " ! � ) & ) ' " % " & # � ( " ) �� � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( 9 ! $  ) 1  $  # / . - ( # �  ! ) % - , & #  ! * " " % " * ( " ! - $ 0 " * , + - & + ) / % " & # # - # � "� ) / � - , & * ) #  - & - . � - ( ( - � ) / � � � " � ) / � - , & * ) #  - & - . � - ( ( - � ) / 4  $ $ ( " $ " ) ! " # � ". , & * ! # - + ) / . - ( # � " ' ( - , & * 4 ) # " ( 1 ) !  & % - * " $ ) ! # � " + ( - = " 6 #  ! 6 - % + $ " # " * ) & * ) !) + + ( - 0 " * 1 / # � " � 8 " 6 , #  0 " � . .  6 " ( � � . # � " ' ( - , & * 4 ) # " ( 1 ) !  & % - * " $  ! & - #6 - % + $ " # " * ) ! ) + + ( - 0 " * 1 / # � " � 8 " 6 , #  0 " � . .  6 " ( 5 � " 4  $ $ 5 ) # �  ! *  ! 6 ( " #  - & 5 ( " *  ( " 6 #) & / - ( ) $ $ - . # � " . , & * ! # - � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ) ' ( " " ! # - . , & * 6 - & ! # ( , 6 #  - & - . ) ' (  # ( " % - 0 ) $ ! / ! # " % ) # # � "�  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( 9 ! # ( " ) # % " & # . ) 6  $  # /  & # � " ) % - , & # - . ) # $ " ) ! # < � � � 5 : � � � � � � � � " + ( - = " 6 # ! * " ! 6 (  1 " *  & � 8 �  1  # � � � � " ! " . , & * ! ) ( " 6 - & !  * " ( " * ) ! , ! + " & * " * $  ) 1  $  # / , & #  $# � " � � � � ) ! 1 " " & . , $ $ /  % + $ " % " & # " * � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ( " + ( " ! " & # ! # � ) # 2 � 3  # 4  $ $. , & * # � " + ( - = " 6 #  & # � " ) % - , & # * " ! 6 (  1 " *  & # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( ) & * 2 � 3  # 4  $ $( " % )  & $  ) 1 $ " . - ( # � " � � � ! , ! + " & * " * $  ) 1  $  # / , & #  $ # � " + ( - = " 6 #  ! 6 - % + $ " # " * ) & *) 6 6 " + # " * 1 / # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( *  & ) 6 6 - ( * ) & 6 " 4  # � # � " # " ( % ! - . # �  !
Item 6 Attachment No. 1 Page 003



� #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( � - � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� - , # � � ) & � ,  ! � 1  ! + - � - , & # / � ) &  # ) #  - & �  ! # (  6 #� #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( � �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ) ' ( " " ! # � ) # # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * � ) ! # � "(  ' � # # - ( " A ,  ( " ) & ) , *  # - . # � " . , & * ! " 8 + " & * " * 1 /  # # -  % + $ " % " & # # � " � � � �� �  + - & # � "�  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( 9 ! ! ) #  ! . ) 6 #  - & - .  # ! � � � - 1 $  ' ) #  - & ! , & * " ( # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( ) & * # � "6 - % + $ " #  - & - . # � " � � � ) & * ) & / ) , *  # ( " A , " ! # " * 1 / # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " (� - ) ( * 5 � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * ! # ) . . ! � ) $ $ ! " & * �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ) $ " # # " ( ( " 6 - ' &  @  & '! ) #  ! . ) 6 # - ( / 6 - % + $ " #  - & - .  # ! � � � - 1 $  ' ) #  - & ! � � �  ! $ " # # " ( ! � ) $ $ # " ( %  & ) # " ) & /. , ( # � " ( � � � - 1 $  ' ) #  - & ! - . �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( 5 ) ! # � " / + " ( # )  & # - # �  ! $  ) 1  $  # / 5 ) & * ( " ! , $ #  &# � " + " ( % ) & " & # 4 )  0 " ( - . # � " � � � ! , ! + " & * " * $  ) 1  $  # / �� � �� & # � " " 0 " & # # � ) # �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " (  ! & - # ) 1 $ " # - * " % - & ! # ( ) # " # - # � " ( " ) ! - & ) 1 $ "! ) #  ! . ) 6 #  - & - . # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * # � ) # # � " " & #  ( " � � � ! , ! + " & * " *$  ) 1  $  # / � ) ! 1 " " & ! + " & # # - 6 - % + $ " # " # � " 6 - % + - & " & # ! - . # � " � � � . - ( 4 �  6 ��  ! 6 � ) ( ' " (  ! .  & ) & 6  ) $ $ / ( " ! + - & !  1 $ " 5 �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ! � ) $ $ + ) / # � " *  . . " ( " & 6 " 1 " # 4 " " &# � " � � � ! , ! + " & * " * $  ) 1  $  # / ) & * # � " ) % - , & # �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( 6 ) & * " % - & ! # ( ) # " 4 ) !) 6 # , ) $ $ / ! + " & # - & # � " � � � ) ! ) & ) * %  &  ! # ( ) #  0 " 6  0  $ $  ) 1  $  # / � �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ! � ) $ $ + ) /# �  ! ( " % )  & * " (  & ) 6 6 - ( * ) & 6 " 4  # � � #  + , $ ) #  - & 5 � ) ( ) ' ( ) + � � ) 1 - 0 " 5 4  # �  & � � * ) / !- .  # ! ( " 6 "  + # - . & - #  6 " - . # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * 9 ! * " # " ( %  & ) #  - & # � ) #�  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( � ) ! . )  $ " * # - * " % - & ! # ( ) # " # � ) # # � " " & #  ( " � � � ! , ! + " & * " * $  ) 1  $  # / � ) !1 " " & ! + " & # # - 6 - % + $ " # " # � " � � � 6 - % + - & " & # ! �B � � - ( # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( *� ) ( 0 " / � ) 6 7 ) ( *� " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # � " '  - & ) $ 
 ) # " ( � , ) $  # / � - & # ( - $ � - ) ( *; : � � " ( - 0  ! # ) � $ ) 6 " 5 � ,  # " � � �� ) & � ,  ! � 1  ! + - 5 � � : � � � �� ) ( 0 " / � + ) 6 7 ) ( * C 4 ) # " ( 1 - ) ( * ! � 6 ) � ' - 02 ; � � 3 � � � � � � � :? " ! !  6 ) ? ) � ( D � # ) . . � - , & ! " $� . .  6 " - . � �  " . � - , & ! " $� # ) # " 
 ) # " ( � " ! - , ( 6 " ! � - & # ( - $ � - ) ( *� � � � � - 8 � � �� ) 6 ( ) % " & # - 5 � � : � ; � � � � � � �? " ! !  6 ) � = ) � ( C 4 ) # " ( 1 - ) ( * ! � 6 ) � ' - 02 : � � 3 � � � � � � � ;� - ( # � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " (� - , # � � ) & � ,  ! � 1  ! + - � - , & # / � ) &  # ) #  - & �  ! # (  6 #6 E - 	 " ( � ) ( * # � , 1 & " ( 5 �  ! # (  6 # � * %  &  ! # ( ) # - (� � � � � $ - � ) � $ � 5 � 6 " ) & - 5 � � : � � � �	 " ( � ) ( * # C ! ! $ - 6 ! * � , !2 ; � � 3 � � � � ; � : �
Item 6 Attachment No. 1 Page 004



� #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( � - � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� - , # � � ) & � ,  ! � 1  ! + - � - , & # / � ) &  # ) #  - & �  ! # (  6 #� - , & ! " $ > 	  $ � ( , =  $ $ - 5 �  ! # (  6 # � - , & ! " $� � � � � � - - 7 � # ( " " #� ) & # ) � ) (  ) 5 � � : � � � �' ) # � ; � ; C 6 - % 6 ) ! # � & " #2 ; � � 3 � � � � � � B �F G � & # � " " 0 " & # # � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( . )  $ ! # - #  % " $ / + ) / # � " . , $ $ ) % - , & # - 4 " *+ , ( ! , ) & # # - # �  ! � ' ( " " % " & # 5 # � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ! � ) $ $ - 4 " # " & + " ( 6 " & # + " ( ) & & , % + ( " �= , * ' % " & #  & # " ( " ! # - & ) & / ) % - , & # * , " ) & * , & + )  * . ( - % # � " * ) # " + ) / % " & # 4 ) ! * , " �� . # � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( . )  $ ! # - #  % " $ / + ) / ) & / + ) ( # - . # � " ) % - , & # - 4 " * + , ( ! , ) & # # - # �  !� ' ( " " % " & # 5  & 6 $ , *  & ' # � " ) . - ( " % " & #  - & " *  & # " ( " ! # 5 1 / � � * ) / ! ) . # " ( # � " * ) # "+ ) / % " & # 4 ) ! * , " 5 �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ! #  + , $ ) # " ! # - " & # ( / - . ) � $ " ( 7 9 ! ? , * ' % " & # . - ( # � ", & + )  * ) % - , & # 5 + , ( ! , ) & # # - 
 ) # " ( � - * " ! " 6 #  - & � � � � ; �: � � 8 6 " + # ) ! - # � " ( 4  ! " + ( - 0  * " * � " ( "  & 5 " ) 6 � � ) ( # /! � ) $ $ 1 " ) ( ) $ $ ) # # - ( & " / ! 9 . " " ! ) & * 6 - ! # ! ) (  !  & ' . ( - % # � " � ) ( # / 9 ! - 4 & 6 - , & ! " $  &6 - & & " 6 #  - & 4  # � # � " % ) # # " ( ! ! " # . - ( # � � " ( "  & �� � � � � � - , $ * �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( - (  # ! ) ' " & # ! - ( ! , 1 6 - & # ( ) 6 # - ( ! + , 1 $  6  @ " - & " - (% - ( " " $ " % " & # ! - . ) & � � � - ( � � � 5 # � " / ! � ) $ $ ! # ) # " # � ) ## � " + ( - = " 6 #  ! 1 "  & ' + ) ( #  ) $ $ / . , & * " * ) ! + ) ( # - . # � " ! " # # $ " % " & # - . ) & " & . - ( 6 " % " & #) 6 #  - & 1 / # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * ) ' )  & ! # �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( �� � � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( , & * " ( ! # ) & * ! # � ) # # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( 4  $ $ 1 "& - #  6 " * . - ( ) � � � * ) / + , 1 $  6 ( " 0  " 4 ) & * 6 - % % " & # + " (  - * + (  - ( # - 6 - & !  * " ( ) #  - & 1 /# � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * - (  # ! * " $ " ' " " � � . !  ' &  .  6 ) & # & " 4  & . - ( % ) #  - &  !( " 6 "  0 " * # � ) # ( " ) ! - & ) 1 $ / ) . . " 6 # ! # � " + ( - + (  " # / - . + ( " ! " & #  & ' # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " (# - # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * - (  # ! * " $ " ' " " . - ( ) * - + #  - & 5 # � " � 8 " 6 , #  0 " � . .  6 " (% ) / , &  $ ) # " ( ) $ $ / * " 6 $ ) ( " # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( 0 -  * ) & * * " 6  * " & - # # - + ( " ! " & #  # # -# � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * - (  # ! * " $ " ' " " � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( ) ' ( " " ! # � ) #  # % ) /& - # ( " ! 6  & * - ( - # � " ( 4  ! " 4  # � * ( ) 4  # ! ) + + ( - 0 ) $ - . # �  ! + ( - + - ! " * � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( �� � � � � " � ) ( #  " !) ' ( " " # � ) # # � " + ( - 6 " * , ( " 6 - & # " % + $ ) # " * . - ( # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * 9 !) * - + #  - & - . # � " ! " # # $ " % " & # 1 / # � " � ) ( #  " ! ) & * ( " 0  " 4 1 / # � " + , 1 $  6 5 ) ! ( " . $ " 6 # " *  &# �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( 5 4  $ $ 1 " ) * " A , ) # " � � & # � " " 0 " & # + ( - 6 " * , ( ) $ - 1 = " 6 #  - & ! ) ( "( )  ! " * + (  - ( # - # � " � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( 1 " 6 - %  & ' " . . " 6 #  0 " 5 # � " � ) ( #  " ! ) ' ( " " # - % " " #) & * 6 - & . " ( 6 - & 6 " ( &  & ' ) & / ! , 6 � - 1 = " 6 #  - & ! 5 ) & * % ) / ) ' ( " " # - ( " 0  ! " - ( ) * = , ! # # � "+ ( - 6 " * , ( " ) ! & " 6 " ! ! ) ( / - ( ) * 0  ! ) 1 $ " , & * " ( # � " 6  ( 6 , % ! # ) & 6 " ! �� � � � � " . )  $ , ( " - . # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * # -" & . - ( 6 " ) & / + ( - 0  !  - & - . # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( ! � ) $ $  & & - 4 ) / 1 " * " " % " * ) 4 )  0 " (- . ! , 6 � + ( - 0  !  - & 5 - (  & ) & / 4 ) / ) . . " 6 # # � " 0 ) $  *  # / - . # � " � ( * " ( � � � " . )  $ , ( " - . # � "� " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * # - " & . - ( 6 " ) & / ! , 6 � + ( - 0  !  - & ! � ) $ $ & - # + ( " 6 $ , * "  # . ( - %$ ) # " ( " & . - ( 6  & ' # � " ! ) % " - ( ) & / - # � " ( + ( - 0  !  - & - . # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( �
Item 6 Attachment No. 1 Page 005



� #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( � - � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� - , # � � ) & � ,  ! � 1  ! + - � - , & # / � ) &  # ) #  - & �  ! # (  6 #� � � � �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( ! � ) $ $ 1 " 6 - & ! # ( , " * ) !  . # � " � ) ( #  " ! + ( " + ) ( " * # = -  & # $ / � � & / , & 6 " ( # )  & # / - ( ) % 1  ' ,  # / ! � ) $ $ & - # 1 "  & # " ( + ( " # " * ) ' )  & ! # ) & / - & "� ) ( # / �� � � � �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( ! � ) $ $ & - # 1 " % - *  .  " * 1 / ) & / - . # � " � ) ( #  " ! 1 /- ( ) $ ( " + ( " ! " & # ) #  - & % ) * " 1 " . - ( " - ( ) . # " (  # ! " 8 " 6 , #  - & � � $ $ % - *  .  6 ) #  - & ! % , ! # 1 "  &4 (  #  & ' 5 !  ' & " * 1 / ) $ $ � ) ( #  " ! 5 ) & * ) + + ( - 0 " * 1 / # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * �� � � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( � ) ! 1 " " &  & . - ( % " * - . # � " (  ' � # ! + ( - 0  * " * 1 /
 ) # " ( � - * " ! " 6 #  - & � � � � � 5 ! , 1 *  0  !  - & 2 1 3 5 ) & * � " ( " 1 / 4 )  0 " !  # ! (  ' � # # - )� " ) (  & ' 1 " . - ( " # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * + (  - ( # - # � " ) * - + #  - & - . # � "� #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( �� B � � � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( � " ( " 1 / 4 )  0 " !  # ! (  ' � # # - + " #  #  - & # � "� " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * 9 ! ) * - + #  - & - . # � " � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( ) ! 4 (  # # " & . - ( ( " 0  " 41 / # � " � # ) # " 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * 5 ) & * . , ( # � " ( 4 )  0 " !  # ! (  ' � # ! 5  . ) & / 5 # - ) + + " ) $ # � " ! ) % "# - ) � , + " (  - ( � - , ( # 5 . " * " ( ) $ *  ! # (  6 # 6 - , ( # 5 ) & * E - ( ) & / ) + + " $ $ ) # " 6 - , ( # �� ; � � "  # � " ( # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " (� - ) ( * % " % 1 " ( ! & - ( # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * ! # ) . . 5 ) # # - ( & " / ! 5 - (( " + ( " ! " & # ) #  0 " ! ! � ) $ $ 1 " $  ) 1 $ " . - ( ) & /  & = , ( / - ( * ) % ) ' " # - + " ( ! - & ! - ( + ( - + " ( # /( " ! , $ #  & ' . ( - % ) 6 # ! - ( - %  ! !  - & ! 1 / # � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( 5  # ! *  ( " 6 # - ( ! 5 - . .  6 " ( ! 5" % + $ - / " " ! 5 ) ' " & # ! 5 ( " + ( " ! " & # ) #  0 " ! 5 - ( 6 - & # ( ) 6 # - ( !  & 6 ) ( ( /  & ' - , # ) 6 #  0  #  " !+ , ( ! , ) & # # - # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( �� : � � ) 6 � + " ( ! - & " 8 " 6 , #  & ' # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " (  & )( " + ( " ! " & # ) #  0 " 6 ) + ) 6  # / ( " + ( " ! " & # ! ) & * 4 ) ( ( ) & # ! # � ) # � " - ( ! � "  ! ) , # � - (  @ " * # -" 8 " 6 , # " # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( - & 1 " � ) $ . - . ) & * # - 1  & * # � " " & #  # / - & 4 � - ! " 1 " � ) $ .� " - ( ! � " " 8 " 6 , # " ! # � " � ( * " ( �� � � � �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " (  ! & - #  & # " & * " * # - 6 - & . " ( ) & /(  ' � # ! - ( - 1 $  ' ) #  - & ! - & ) & / # �  ( * + ) ( # / - ( + ) ( #  " ! 5 ) & * & - # �  ( * + ) ( # / - ( + ) ( #  " ! ! � ) $ $� ) 0 " ) & / (  ' � # - . ) 6 #  - & , & * " ( # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( . - ( ) & / 6 ) , ! " 4 � ) # ! - " 0 " ( �� � � > � �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( ! � ) $ $ 1 " " . . " 6 #  0 " ) & * 1  & *  & ' - & # � " � ) ( #  " !, + - & # � " * ) # " # � " � " & # ( ) $ � - ) ! # 
 ) # " ( � - ) ( * 5 - (  # ! * " $ " ' " " 5 " & # " ( ! # � " � ( * " ( �� � � � �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " * � ( * " ( % ) / 1 " " 8 " 6 , # " * ) & * * " $  0 " ( " *  &) & / & , % 1 " ( - . 6 - , & # " ( + ) ( # ! 5 " ) 6 � - . 4 �  6 � 4 � " & " 8 " 6 , # " * ) & * * " $  0 " ( " * ! � ) $ $ 1 "* " " % " * # - 1 " ) & - (  '  & ) $ 5 1 , # ! , 6 � 6 - , & # " ( + ) ( # ! ! � ) $ $ # - ' " # � " ( 6 - & ! #  # , # " - & "* - 6 , % " & # �� � � 
  # �  & B * ) / ! - . # � " � . . " 6 #  0 " � ) # " - . # �  ! � #  + , $ ) # " *� ( * " ( + , ( ! , ) & # # - + ) ( ) ' ( ) + � � ; ) 1 - 0 " 5 # � " �  ! 6 � ) ( ' " ( 4  $ $ .  $ " ) ( " A , " ! # . - (*  ! %  ! ! ) $ 4  # � + ( " = , *  6 " - . � ) 6 ( ) % " & # - � , + " (  - ( � - , ( # � ) ! " � - � � � � � � � � �; � � � � � � � ) ! # - ) $ $ ( " ! + - & * " & # ! E * " . " & * ) & # ! �� � � � �  ! ! " # # $ " % " & # ) ' ( " " % " & # 5 ) & * # � " ) # # ) 6 � % " & # ! " 8 + $  6  # $ /  & 6 - ( + - ( ) # " * � " ( "  & 56 - & ! #  # , # " ! # � " " & #  ( " ) ' ( " " % " & # 1 " # 4 " " & # � " + ) ( #  " ! �
Item 6 Attachment No. 1 Page 006



Item 6 Attachment No. 1 Page 007



Item 6 Attachment No. 1 Page 008



 STATE OF CALIFORNIA – NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  EDMUND G. BROWN, JR., GOVERNOR 

CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION 
CENTRAL COAST DISTRICT OFFICE 
725 FRONT STREET, SUITE 300 
SANTA CRUZ, CA  95060 
PHONE: (831) 427-4863 
FAX: (831) 427-4877 
WWW.COASTAL.CA.GOV 

 

 

October 12, 2016 

John F. Rickenbach 
7675 Bella Vista Road 
Atascadero, California 93422  
 

Subject: Coastal Development Permit (CDP) Application Number 3-16-0233 (South San 
Luis Obispo County Sanitation District (District) Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Redundancy Project)   

Dear John:  

On March 15, 2016, we received the above-referenced CDP application that you submitted on 
behalf of the District. The proposed redundancy project is located at the District’s wastewater 
treatment plant (WWTP) at 1600 Aloha Place in Oceano.  

On April 15, 2016 we sent an application status letter to you regarding this project. On August 
8th and 9th, we received additional materials in response to our status letter. Commission staff 
held a conference call with the District and others on August 16th and received another submittal 
of additional materials, based on this conversation, on September 12, 2016. We have reviewed 
the materials that you have submitted to date and are in need of additional information to 
adequately analyze the proposed project for Coastal Act conformance. Towards this end, we are 
unable to file this application until the following is submitted: 

1. Project Description. As described in the latest submitted materials and in your letter 
dated September 9, 2016, the District is proposing to install a variety of components 
designed for redundancy purposes at the site, as well as other minor flood-proofing 
improvements including: 1) raising or replacing the existing flood barrier around the 
“Standby Power Building” to provide an additional two feet of flood protection; 2) 
installing a new four-foot-high flood barrier around the edge of the “Transformer slab”; 
and 3) raising or replacing the existing flood barrier around the “Power Generation 
Station” to provide an additional six inches of flood protection. Are these the only 
“critical” structures that the proposed project intends to better protect from flooding? If 
so, and while some of these locations are shown in the Flood Mitigation Strategy 
document dated September 7, 2016, staff would appreciate two full-scale and two 
reduced-sized (8 ½” x 11” or 11” by 17”) plan sheets showing the proposed redundancy 
project components and the three minor flood-proofing components on the same plan 
sheet.  

Lastly, please also include a project description and project plans for any flood-proofing 
or other work previously done on the site without the necessary Coastal Commission 
authorized CDP. As mentioned in prior correspondence, the Commission previously 
authorized the addition of  a storage building (3-95-095-W), replacement of a sludge 

Item 6 Attachment No. 2 Page 001



John Rickenbach 
3-16-0233 (SLO County Sanitation District WWTP Redundancy Project) 
October 12, 2016 
Page 2 
 

centrifuge (3-08-056-W), and installation of a wireless communications facility (3-02-
028) at the site. If there have been other recent improvements or upgrades or 
development on the site (e.g., in relation to the 2010 flooding event) please add these as 
after-the-fact components to the project description and submit a set of full-scale and 
reduced-scale project plans for each of these components. 

2. Alternatives. Section 13053.5 of the Commission’s administrative regulations requires 
that project descriptions contained in a permit application include any feasible1 
alternatives that would substantially lessen any significant adverse impact the 
development may have on the environment. Thank you for providing an analysis 
summarizing the costs of relocation of the existing WWTP through identification of 
possible relocation sites in the service area. However, we have some questions regarding 
the analyzed relocation sites. Specifically, what were the reasons for selecting these three 
sites as opposed to others? Was it because these were the only areas in the vicinity that 
had 12 acres or more of space, which is an expected size for a new WWTP? Are there 
other locations that are outside the District’s service area that would be suitable, or would 
the distance make the site cost-prohibitive? Please provide answers to these questions. 
 
Finally, thank you for comments on the ability to reuse or relocate proposed redundancy 
project components at a new facility in the future.  Please confirm that there is not a more 
temporary solution to the redundancy project which would enable the District to 
accomplish its (and the Regional Water Quality Control Board’s) goals, while at the same 
time reducing financial costs to the District.  

 
We will hold the application for three months from today’s date (i.e., until January 12, 2017) 
pending receipt of these materials. After all of the above-listed materials have been received, the 
package will again be reviewed and will be filed if it contains materials sufficient for a thorough 
and complete review.  This submittal deadline may be extended for good cause if such request is 
made prior to December 12, 2016. I look forward to working with you on this project. Please do 
not hesitate to contact me at (831) 427-4863 if you have any questions regarding the above 
information requests. 

Sincerely, 

 
Daniel Robinson 
Coastal Planner 
Central Coast District Office 
 
                                                           
1 “Feasible” as defined by Section 30108 of the Coastal Act, means capable of being accomplished in a successful 
manner within a reasonable period of time, taking into account economic, environmental, social, and technological 
factors. 

Item 6 Attachment No. 2 Page 002





Item 7A, Page 1 
 

 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
 
 
 

             
 
Date:     October 19, 2016 
 
To:        Board of Directors 
 
From:   Gerhardt Hubner, District Administrator  
 
 
Subject: CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-358, AUTHORIZING AN 

ANNUAL TRANSFER TO A DEDICATED RESERVE ACCOUNT, AND 
DIRECTING THE DISTRICT ADMININSTRATOR TO TRANSFER MONEY PER 
THE DISTRICT’S RESERVE POLICY 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2016-358, authorizing annual transfers to the Reserve Account, and 
transferring $248,990 from the beginning fund balance available in Operating Fund 19 to new 
Account No. 19-1011. 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
 On June 15, 2016, the Board approved Resolution No. 2016-352, approving a Reserve Policy. 

Through this Resolution the District Board emphasized it is proceeding with significant capital 
projects including a redundancy project, and wished to implement a prudent reserve to assure 
success of these efforts.  Resolution No. 2016-352 also authorized the District Administrator to 
move an amount equal to 10% of the annual costs of District maintenance and operation from 
Beginning Fund balance available in Operating Fund 19 to a Reserve Fund.  

 
Once the transferred money is reserved, these conditions must be met for use: 

 
• Only in one-time cases of emergency, natural disaster, or unexpected event; 
• A majority vote of the Board is required to access the reserve; 
• The reserve will be reviewed annually with the budget. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Today’s Resolution No. 2016-358 would authorize and direct the District Administrator to make 
this transfer on an annual basis, after calculating the amount based on the Board’s annual review 
at the conclusion of each fiscal year.  After completing review of the Fiscal Year 2016-17 end of 



Item 7A, Page 2 
 

year financials, 10% of the unaudited annual costs of maintenance and operation resulted in a 
total amount of $248,990. 
 
Today we are also requesting approval to create a new budget account titled Account No. 19-
1011 (Cash in County Reserved) and transfer $248,990 from Account No. 19-4005 (Beginning 
Fund Balance) to this account.   
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
1. Resolution No. 2016-358 



                                                                                                                    Resolution No. 2016-358 
 

RESOLUTION 2016-358 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO 
COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT,  

AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR TO TRANSFER 
MONEY FROM THE ACCOUNT “BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AVAILABLE” TO A 

DEDICATED RESERVE FUND IN OPERATING FUND 19 
 
WHEREAS, in addition to its standard operations, the District is now proceeding 

with significant capital and updating projects including a redundancy project, and wishes 
to implement a prudent reserve to assure success of these efforts; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 15, 2016, the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation 

District (District) approved Resolution 2016-352, Approving a Reserve Policy and 
authorizing the District Administrator, or his/her designee, to take all steps necessary to 
implement the policy; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Board of South San 

Luis Obispo County Sanitation District: 
  
1.  In order to implement Resolution No. 2016-352, the District Administrator, or his 
designee, is hereby authorized and directed to move an amount equal to 10% of the 
annual costs of District maintenance and operation from Beginning Fund Balance 
Available in Operating Fund 19 to a Reserve Fund also in Operating Fund 19; and 
 
2.  The District Administrator is authorized and directed to make this transfer on an annual 
basis in accordance with best practices, after calculating the amount based on the Board’s 
annual review in adopting its budget; and 
 
3.  Once the transferred money is reserved, these conditions must be met for use: 

• Only in one-time cases of emergency, natural disaster, or unexpected 
event; 

• A majority vote of the Board is required to access the reserve; 
• The reserve will be reviewed annually with the budget. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the South San Luis County 

Sanitation District Board of Directors held this 19th day of October, 2016. 
 
On the motion of ___________________seconded by______________, and 

after the following roll call vote:  
 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
CONFLICTS:  
 
 
 
 



                                                                                                                    Resolution No. 2016-358 
 

 
________________________________________________ 
John Shoals, 
Chairman 
Board of Directors  
South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 

      BY:     
               DISTRICT COUNSEL 
 
 
 
        CONTENTS: 
 
       BY:     
            DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR 
 
         
 





Item 7B Page 1 
 

 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California  93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
          STAFF REPORT 

 
Date:           October 19, 2016 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Gerhardt Hubner, District Administrator 
 
 
Subject: GRIEVANCES FILED BY DISTRICT OPERATORS MR. MICHAEL ARIAS AND 

MR. MYCHAL JONES 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

1.  Adopt a resolution resolving Michael Arias’ grievance; and 
2.  Adopt a resolution resolving Mychal Jones’ grievance. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
A.  Michael Arias’ Grievance (Attachment No. 1) 
Michael Arias filed a written grievance form with the District Administrator on August 30, 2016.  
This filing followed meetings with the District Administrator on August 4 and 23. This grievance, 
and discussions that proceeded were an outcome of previous discussion(s) on the 
recommendation to promote to Operator III prior to review and concurrence with the District 
Administrator. These meetings received Mr. Arias’ concerns, comments and feedback; addressed 
promotions in the context of organization needs; and included a comprehensive question-and-
answer session responding to the topic of promotion to Operator III.  Mr. Arias also attended a 
meeting in which the District Administrator explained that the employees would be included in the 
process of updating the District's Personnel Policy Manual ("Manual"), which the District 
Administrator was hoping to present for Board approval before the end of 2016.  
 
In his grievance form, Mr. Arias stated there is an open, unfilled Operator III position at the Oceano 
Wastewater Treatment Plant.  He believes this is inconsistent with policy and past practices; 
however, Mr. Arias' grievance did not identify specific policy or past practices nor cite one or more 
specific sections of the Personnel Policy Manual that were misapplied, or misinterpreted by the 
District Administrator.    A response from Plant Superintendent John Clemons states that Mr. 
Clemons cannot provide the requested remedy.   
 
The District Administrator responded in writing to Mr. Arias on September 7, 2016.  His response 
denied the grievance based on the District’s Personnel Policy Manual (“Manual”), previous 
meetings held with Mr. Arias, the District Administrator's independent judgment, and an attached 
Grievance Report by Lara HR Services.  The Grievance Report concludes, among other things, 
that the requested remedy by Mr. Arias is inconsistent with current District policy, which does not 



Item 7B Page 2 
 

require vacancies to be filled within a specified timeframe. In addition, the Grievance Report 
documents there is no consistent historical promotion practice with regard to timing. 
 
On September 9, 2016, Mr. Arias appealed in writing to the Chair of the District Board.  Mr. Arias 
stated that if the Manual is not clear, historical practices should be followed; in addition, the District 
Administrator cannot alter policy by requiring an employee to wait for a position until policy is 
altered.  Mr. Arias’ appeal included his grievance form, response by the Plant Superintendent, 
email clarification from the Superintendent, salary range chart from Resolution No.2016-340, 
decision memo from the District Administrator, and appeal statement.  It did not include the 
Grievance Report from Lara HR Services. 
 
B.  Mychal Jones’ Grievance (Attachment No. 2) 
Jerome Mychal Jones, Jr. filed a written grievance form with the District Administrator on August 
30, 2016.  This filing followed meetings with the District Administrator on August 4 and 23. This 
grievance, and discussions that proceeded were an outcome of previous discussion(s) on the 
recommendation to promote to Operator III prior to review and concurrence with the District 
Administrator. These meetings received Mr. Jones’ concerns, comments and feedback; 
addressed promotions in the context of organization needs; and included a comprehensive 
question-and-answer session responding to the topic of promotion to Operator III.  Mr. Jones also 
attended a meeting in which the District Administrator explained that the employees would be 
included in the process of updating the Manual, which the District Administrator was hoping to 
present for Board approval before the end of 2016.  
 
In an attachment to his grievance form, Mr. Jones stated that he has “fulfilled all requirements to 
be a Grade III operator and should have been promoted to Grade III operator.”  He also states 
that “[t]here are current policies and practices that outline the requirements to become a Grade 
III operator” and that he has fulfilled them.  He requests he be promoted to Grade III operator in 
advance of updates to the policy Manual.  Mr. Jones does not cite one or more specific sections 
of the Personnel Policy Manual that were misapplied, or misinterpreted by the District 
Administrator.   Responses from Plant Superintendent John Clemons 1) document meetings with 
Messrs. Jones and Arias and District Administrator Hubner; and 2) state that Mr. Clemons cannot 
provide the requested remedy.   
 
The District Administrator responded in writing to Mr. Jones on September 7, 2016.  His response 
denied the grievance based on the District’s Personnel Policy Manual, previous meetings held 
with Mr. Jones, the District Administrator's independent judgment, and an attached Grievance 
Report by Lara HR Services.  The Grievance Report concludes, among other things, that the 
requested remedy by Mr. Jones is inconsistent with current District policy, which does not require 
vacancies to be filled within a specified timeframe, nor is there "automatic" promotion based on 
certification. In addition, the Grievance Report documents there is no consistent historical 
promotion practice with regard to timing. 
 
On September 14, 2016, Mr. Jones appealed in writing to the Chair of the District Board.  Mr. 
Jones stated that his “promotion was put on indefinite hold by the District Administrator.”  He also 
stated 1) that previously a District employee had been appointed to Grade III operator without a 
competitive recruitment; and 2) he is the only qualified employee for Grade III operator because 
the other qualified District employees have stated they either defer or are not interested in the 
position.  Mr. Jones’ appeal included a document titled “Grievance,” two responses by the Plant 
Superintendent, email clarification from the Superintendent, decision memo from the District 
Administrator, Grievance Report from Lara HR Services, and appeal statement. 
 
 
 
 



Item 7B Page 3 
 

PROCEDURE  
A.  Steps to follow 
The Board should: 
 

1. Open a hearing; 
2. Receive evidence.  The Chair should limit the evidence to specifics outlined in the 

policy issues below. 
3. Close the hearing; 
4. Retire to closed session and deliberate; 
5. Return to open session and adopt a resolution resolving Michael Arias’ and Mychal 

Jones’ grievances. 
 
B.  Analysis 
Section 5010 of the Manual provides for grievances to be appealed to the Board when they are 
against the District Administrator, and do not involve employee evaluations unless the District 
Administrator prepared them. A grievance appeal must be in writing stating reasons, and be 
accompanied by the original grievance and the Administrator’s decision. 
 
Paragraph IV.D of Section 5010 of the Manual sets out steps for the Board to follow when 
reviewing a grievance: 
 

1. The Board President schedules a hearing on the grievance and responses to it at a 
regular monthly meeting; 

2. The Board receives evidence on the issues; and 
3. The Board issues a written decision. 

 
The Board currently has two separate grievances before it for review.  One grievance (Mr. Jones’) 
seeks a promotion by means of appointment and the other (Mr. Arias’) seeks the immediate filling 
of an employment position.  Under Government Code Section 54957(b)(1), the Board may hold 
a closed session “to consider the appointment…of a public employee.”  
 
DISCUSSION 
To assist the Board in deciding the merits of these Grievance appeals, the following Policy issues 
and information are provided for consideration: 
 

1. Is there an Operator III position vacancy?    Yes 
 
In the District’s approved Budget for Fiscal Year 2016-17, an Operator III vacancy exists.  
Some of the funding for that allocated position is currently being used to staff one the 
District’s Operator II employees. 
 

2. Must the vacancy at the Operator III level be filled now?  No 
 
The District’s Personnel Policy Manual does not require an automatic position filling nor 
that a vacancy be filled or promotion be granted within a specified time. Further all 
operators are currently being compensated commensurate with assigned duties. 
 

3. Should past practices be the guide or predictor of current practices?   
 
“Past practice” is a legal term of art and has different legal meanings depending on 
context.  For the District, a “past practice” would be relevant to help the Board interpret 
the words of an ambiguous policy, along with the history of the policy’s adoption and public 
policy.  [Coburn v. Sievert, 133 Cal.App.4th 1483, 1496 (2005).]   
 



Item 7B Page 4 
 

Past practice does not mean “the way we’ve done it before.”  Instead, a past practice may 
help to interpret a written rule that is ambiguous.  However, the District’s Manual clearly 
and unambiguously states that recruitment is the proper method to accomplish 
promotions. [Section 2020.]  Therefore, no “past practice” is needed to help understand 
Section 2020 of the Manual. 
 
Finally, language in the Manual suggests that any ambiguity would need to be resolved 
through an amendment adopted by the Board, not a past practice.  Chapter 1, Section 
1010 of the Manual states: “No oral statements or representations can, in any way, change 
or alter the provisions of this manual.” 

 
4. Is there an alternative to filling the vacancy now?  Yes 

 
District priorities are established and updated by the Board based upon past and present 
Board direction, fiduciary and budget obligations (including staffing costs), and District 
organization needs. The District Administrator, as part of his job duties, provides 
recommendations to the Board and implements these priorities.  
 
Filling the vacancy now would problematic for at least two reasons.  Currently no Operator 
III job description exists (Operator III is not part of the combined Operator job description) 
within the Personnel Policy Manual.  Therefore, if a promotion were to be granted with no 
corresponding increase in duties or responsibilities it is hard to justify or rationalize how a 
higher salary can just be given.  Additionally, the update to the Personnel Policy Manual 
was identified as a Board priority as far back as mid-2015, but never completed.  The 
update process is progressing under the current District Administrator, and all operator 
job descriptions have already been identified for review and update as part of that process. 
Developing an Operator III job description will have an impact on the rest of the operator 
job descriptions, and therefore will necessitate they all be updated at the same time, to 
avoid confusion of duties, responsibilities and authority. 
 

5. If a vacancy is to be filled, what are the proper steps and procedures?   
 
Competitive recruitment is the standard industry human resource practice for all public 
service agencies (federal, state, local and special district agencies) to promote fairness, 
equity and prevent claims of discrimination.  Competitive merit based recruitments ensure 
that all qualified candidates have the opportunity to compete for a promotion or position 
based upon their education, experience, and qualifications. There is no rationale nor any 
evidence provided that these common human resource agency practices should not apply 
to the District. 
 
To avoid charges of favoritism, cronyism or nepotism, vacancies are filled using a 
competitive recruitment process, similar to other what other public agencies employ.  
Section 2020 of the Manual provides for a District recruitment process.  The process 
includes soliciting applications only when openings exist or are contemplated, and 
following a District philosophy to promote from within.  Appointments after recruitment are 
to be made by the District Administrator after review of completed applications, submitted 
materials, personal interviews and demonstrated ability. 
 
Three current District employees potentially could apply for the existing Operator III 
vacancy.  A recruitment process allows each employee the opportunity to decide to 
participate in the recruitment or not. 
 

6. How many Operators III are legally required to operate a Grade III rated wastewater 
treatment plant such as the one at the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District?   



Item 7B Page 5 
 

 
Per the State of California regulations and discharge permit issued by the Central Coast 
Regional Water Quality Control, only one Grade III Certified Operator is required for this 
District. Prudent operational practices for redundancy would likely also include a backup 
or additional Operator with a Grade III certificate. There is no requirement that an operator 
with a Grade III certificate hold a job title of Operator III. Currently the Plant Superintendent 
holds a Grade IV Certificate, and four employees/Operators hold Grade III Certifications.1  
One employee resides in one of the Grade III positions, promoted in 2014.  Research and 
conversations with past employees into past District staffing levels indicates two Grade III 
Operators were sufficient to operate the District’s wastewater treatment plant, similar to 
today. 

 
Options for the Board’s consideration today: 
 

1. Sustain the determination of the District Administrator and deny the two Grievances 
filed or; 

2. Uphold the two Grievances filed; or 
3. Direct the District Administrator in some other fashion as the Board sees appropriate. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:   
 

1. Appeal filed by Mr. Michael Arias, received September 9, 2016 
2. Appeal filed by Mr. Mychal Jones, received September 14, 2016 
3. Grievance Report by Lara HR Services, dated September 7, 2016 
4. Exhibits to Grievance Report 

                                                 
1  It should be noted that District Operators are still eligible for future steps increases based upon 
performance (and did receive step salary increases on August 6, 2016) and future Board approved cost of 
living raises.  Furthermore, both grievants continue to receive a 2.5 percent increase in base salary for 
holding Grade III Operator Certificates beyond what their current position require. 
 



Item 7B Attachment No. 1 Page 001



Item 7B Attachment No. 1 Page 002



Item 7B Attachment No. 1 Page 003



Item 7B Attachment No. 1 Page 004



Item 7B Attachment No. 1 Page 005



Item 7B Attachment No. 1 Page 006



Item 7B Attachment No. 2 Page 001



Item 7B Attachment No. 2 Page 002



Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 001



LARA HR SERVICES !P O BOX 2052 ! PISMO BEACH, CA 93448 
 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
 

GRIEVANCE REPORT 
 
 
 
 

GRIEVANCE FILED BY 
 

JEROME MYCHAL JONES, JR, OPERATOR II 
 

Dated AUGUST 24, 2016 
 
 
 

AND  
 
 
 

GRIEVANCE FILED BY 
 

MICHAEL ARIAS, OPERATOR II 
 

Dated AUGUST 24, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report By 
 

ALICIA LARA, CONSULTANT 
 

SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 002



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 1 of 15 

THE GRIEVANCES: 
On the afternoon of August 30, 2016, Gerhardt Hubner, District Administrator received two 
separate formal grievances, both dated August 24, 2016, filed under SSLOCSD Personnel 
Policy Manual Section 5010; both grievances were filed on District Employee Grievance 
Forms as attachments to emails. The District Administrator has five (5) working days to 
respond to a grievance. 
 
Each employee is independently grieving District Administrator Hubner's decision to not 
immediately promote a qualified candidate to the vacant Operator III position. There are 
currently two "vacancies" within the District, one in the classification of Operator III, and the 
other in the classification of Shift Supervisor. However, the District is fully staffed through 
assignments to lower level classifications. 
 
The grievances allege the District Administrator misapplied or misinterpreted (or changed) 
the District policy (Personnel Policy Manual), and/or failed to follow an established past 
practice. 
 
Through this process, it was determined there is no Board approved current District job 
description for Operator III, and no rule, policy, or regulation that requires promotion upon 
attainment of a Grade III certificate. 
 
The first grievance dated August 24, 2016 is from Mychal Jones, Operator II. The remedy 
Mr. Jones is seeking is as follows; "Under current District policies and practices, I would 
like to be promoted to a Grade III operator as recommended by Chief Plant Operator, John 
L. Clemons III, on July 29, 2016." 
 
The second grievance dated August 24, 2016 is from Michael Arias, Operator II. The 
remedy Mr. Arias is seeking is as follows; "I feel the appropriate remedy to this situation 
would be to fill the Operator III slot/position with a currently qualified staff member." 
 
John Clemons, Plant Superintendent recommended (in each employee's respective written 
performance evaluation) that both employees be promoted to the Operator III. 
 
Prior to the grievances being filed, for a number of reasons discussed below, the District 
Administrator did not approve the promotion for Mr. Jones; nor did he approved opening a 
promotional recruitment process as requested by Mr. Arias. 
 
BACKGROUND – STAFF AUTHORITY: 
Gerhardt Hubner – District Administrator Hired April 18, 2016 
John Clemons – Plant Superintendent Hired May 3, 2013 
 
District Administrator: Pursuant to the job description adopted by the Board of Directors on 
September 25, 2015 by Resolution 2015-335, the District Administrator "Acts as appointing 
authority consistent with District Personnel Policy as established by the Board of Directors, 
relative to employee appointment, supervision, training, evaluation, discipline, dismissal, 
and resolution of grievances." The District Administrator's authority is further defined 
through the Board of Directors By-Laws last amended March 2, 2016 under Section 8 and 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 003



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 2 of 15 

Section 9.4, and the incumbent's employment contract Sections 2.A.2 and 2.A.4, approved 
April 20, 2016 by Resolution 2016-343. 
 
Plant Superintendent: The Plant Superintendent may make recommendations to the 
District Administrator regarding various personnel actions, or at times, may take 
independent action as delegated by the District Administrator. Pursuant to the Plant 
Superintendent job description, the "…Plant Superintendent receives general direction 
from the contract District Manager…" 1  Once the District Administrator approves a 
recommended personnel action, he/she may delegate authority to the Plant 
Superintendent to discuss it with the employee. 
 
Consultant: The Board of Directors approved a contract for my consulting services (Lara 
HR Services) on November 5, 2014. Per the contract, the District Administrator serves as 
the District designated representative, and authorizes services, typically on a project basis. 
As an impartial independent consultant my work is not "supervised" by the District 
Administrator; rather, I serve in an advisory role as requested, specific to human resources 
matters. Therefore, I do not oversee all personnel actions, including day-to-day operational 
issues related to staffing of the District. 
 
The District Budget: The Board of Directors approves an annual District Budget in June for 
the subsequent fiscal year. The Budget is the driving document that gives staff authority to 
take necessary action toward meeting District priorities and goals. As stewards of public 
funds, staff administration must consider operational decisions and the effect they may 
have on the budget, and strive to "live within" the allocations as approved by the Board of 
Directors. Budget preparation therefore is a critical role for administrative staff. The budget 
line items for salaries are based on the numbers of allocations as listed in the Salary 
Schedule. When unexpected events occur that have an effect on approved funding, 
budget adjustments may be proposed by the District Administrator to the Board of 
Directors. 
 
Salary Schedule/Authorized Positions: District staffing levels (funded allocations) are 
typically publicized on a Salary Schedule, which is included in the annual District Budget 
process. However, from time to time, mid-year adjustment recommendations may include 
changes to staffing levels. The Salary Schedule gives staff the authority to fill vacancies 
based on the allocations as approved by the Board of Directors; and while the appointing 
authority is often given latitude to hire into a lower classification than allocated, there is no 
authority for the District Administrator to appoint staff into a classification with a higher 
salary range than allocated by the Board of Directors. 
 
District Personnel Policy Manual: The District Personnel Policy Manual as adopted by the 
Board of Directors, is the document that determines the manner in which matters of District 
business are to be conducted, including the selection process and appointment of District 
staff. The District's Personnel Policy Manual was last adopted in full in February 2005 by 

                                            
1 The Plant Superintendent job description was last updated in March 2015 by Resolution 2015-326, under a 
part-time District Manager. The job description will be reviewed as part of the Personnel Policy Manual 
review, to ensure the duties and responsibilities reflect current District authorities under a full-time District 
Administrator. 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 004



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 3 of 15 

Resolution 2005-220. Changes may be adopted by resolution and "No oral statements or 
representations can, in any way, change or alter the provisions of this manual."2  
 
In order to affect proposed changes, after an announcement of changes "…through 
standard communication channels (for example, employee meetings and Manager 
Communications)…" any policy amendments to the Personnel Policy Manual "…shall first 
be introduced at one meeting of the Board of Directors, at which meeting the Board may 
provide direction to staff on the proposed modifications or deletions after receiving public 
comment. The proposed modifications or deletions shall then, at a second meeting of the 
Board of Directors, be presented for final adoption."3 Since February 2005 a number of 
changes were recommended by the District Administrator and adopted through a 
resolution approved by the Board of Directors.  
 
The Personnel Policy Manual is currently under review for possible updates. Until the 
review process is completed and the Board of Directors adopts any recommended 
changes as submitted by the District Administrator, staff must follow the policies within the 
Personnel Policy Manual as they now stand. However, if any policy or portion of a policy 
contained within the District personnel policies is in conflict with rules, regulations or 
legislation having authority over the SSLOCSD, said rules, regulations, or legislation shall 
prevail. 
 
Personnel Policy Manual Section 5010 – Grievance Procedure, Section 4.A allows for an 
informal grievance process (Level I) in an attempt to resolve the matter. Section 4.B is the 
next step (Level II) wherein the employee presents evidence in writing using the District 
Employee Grievance Form, to his/her immediate supervisor. "The Supervisor will then 
provide the employee with a written reply. If the reply is not satisfactory, the employee then 
proceeds to the next step." Under Section 4.C (Level III) the employee must present 
his/her grievance to the District Administrator in written form (the same Employee 
Grievance Form previously used in Level II). Section 4.C states in part, "The [employee] 
statement shall include the following: 

I. A concise statement of the grievance including specific reference to 
any law, policy, rule, regulation and/or instruction deemed to be 
violated, misapplied or misinterpreted; 

II. The circumstances involved; 
III. The decision rendered by the immediate supervisor at Level II;  
IV. The specific remedy sought." 

 
Neither grievance as presented from Mr. Jones or Mr. Arias cites the specific reference to 
any law, policy, rule, regulation and/or instruction deemed to be violated, misapplied or 
misinterpreted. Rather, the employee statements in the grievances refer to "current District 
policies" and "current policy and past practices" without specific examples of which policies 
or past practices are being referenced. 
 
PLANT SUPERINTENDENT'S RECOMMENDATION: 

                                            
2 Personnel Policy Manual Section 1010 – Policy Amendments. 
3 Personnel Policy Manual Section 1010 – Policy Amendments 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 005



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 4 of 15 

July 29, 2016 – The Plant Superintendent provided Mr. Jones with a written performance 
evaluation dated July 29, 2016. At the end of the evaluation in his comments, the Plant 
Superintendent stated, "I recommend that he be advanced to Grade III Operator at Step 
one effective February 2, 2016." The employee and the Plant Superintendent signed the 
performance evaluation. Both signatures are dated July 29, 2016. There is no signature 
from the District Administrator. 
 
August 1, 2016 – The District Administrator asked me to review the Plant 
Superintendent's recommendation to promote an Operator II to the classification of 
Operator III. The Plant Superintendent had presented the District Administrator with 
several completed (hard copy) performance evaluations, one of which was for Mr. Jones. 
The first the District Administrator knew of the Plant Superintendent's recommendation to 
fill the Operator III vacancy, is when the Plant Superintendent presented him with Mr. 
Jones' completed performance evaluation for his (District Administrator's) review and 
approval. The District Administrator had a number of concerns. 
 

• The Plant Superintendent made a recommendation to fill a vacancy without 
first seeking authorization from the District Administrator as the appointing 
authority, to fill the vacancy; 

• the Plant Superintendent made a recommendation in a performance 
evaluation for a promotion, and in the District Administrator's experience 
promotional recommendations are done in a separate process, outside of the 
performance evaluation process; 

• the Plant Superintendent's statement created an expectation for the 
employee that he would be promoted;  

• the Plant Superintendent made a recommendation to promote one individual 
to fill a "vacant Operator III position" backdated to February 1, 2016; and 
backdating a promotion will create classification "seniority" rights, which is 
not a typical public sector standard; 

• at least three employees are qualified to fill the Operator III vacancy, 
therefore there should be a formal promotional process; 

• the District Administrator wanted to review staffing levels to support District 
needs4  

• there was no Employee Roster, which clearly stated the authorized 
allocations, and the status of employees within each classification. 

 
August 2, 2016 – The Plant Superintendent provided a completed evaluation for Mr. Arias 
to the District Administrator via email. Within the performance evaluation for Mr. Arias 
dated August 2, 2016, the Plant Superintendent stated, "I recommend that he be advanced 
to the Grade III Operator, Step 1 position.5  
                                            
4 Mr. Hubner was appointed effective April 18, 2016. Within three and one half weeks, he had to complete a 
proposed draft District Budget document for fiscal year 2016-17 for presentation on May 18, 2016 to the 
Board of Directors. The draft budget was already in progress under the direction of Mr. Clemons, who was 
serving as Interim District Administrator since September 2015. Mr. Hubner relied on Mr. Clemons to develop 
a number of programs within the budget, including staffing levels. 
5  With the 2016-17 Fiscal Year Budget, recommendations were made to change Salary Schedule 
classification steps from 1-5 to A-E, to avoid confusion with classification level titles, and Grade certificate 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 006



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 5 of 15 

 
STAFFING LEVELS: 
The classifications that have job descriptions established in the Personnel Policy Manual 
are, District Administrator, Plant Superintendent, Shift Supervisor, Plant Operator, 
Electrical/Mechanical Technician, Senior Maintenance Mechanic, Laboratory Technician, 
Bookkeeper/Secretary, Operator-in-Training, Maintenance Assistant and Lead Operator. 
The current funded allocations are authorized by the Board through the 2016/17 Fiscal 
Year Budget Salary Schedule as adopted by Resolution 2016-349. 
 
The only two established job descriptions in the Personnel Policy Manual that require a 
Grade III certificate are Plant Superintendent, and Shift Supervisor.  
 
In order to for the District Administrator to consider a promotional process, the job 
requirements must first be clearly defined in a job description approved by the Board of 
Directors as part the Personnel Policy Manual. 
 
Based on the employee roster provided by the Bookkeeper/Secretary on August 2, 2016, 
the District is fully staffed. However, at least three operators are appointed to a 
classification level less than the Board approved allocated classification level. In addition a 
total of four employees possess a Grade III certification;6 three of those employees are not 
currently classified as an Operator III.  
 
Mr. Jones and Mr. Arias are both appointed in the classification of Operator II.7 Both 
employees possess a Grade III Wastewater Treatment Plant Operators Certificate issued 
by the State Water Resources Control Board (11/2015 and 07/2016 respectively) and are 
receiving the 2.5% stipend.8  is appointed to the classification of Lab 
Technician/Operator (which requires a Grade II certificate) and possesses a Grade III 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operators Certificate issued by the State Water Resources 
Control Board (07/2015).  is also receiving the 2.5% stipend. 
 
FACTUAL FINDINGS: 
On July 29, 2016 the Plant Superintendent completed a performance evaluation for Mr. 
Jones. He then provided it to the District Administrator.  
                                                                                                                                                 
levels. Therefore, the reference to  "Step one (1)" is equivalent to "Step A" in all classifications including 
Operator III. 
6 The job description for Plant Superintendent requires a Grade III certificate; Mr. Clemons possesses a 
Grade IV certificate; therefore he is receiving the 2.5% stipend for a higher Grade certificate. 
7  During conversations regarding the Personnel Policy Manual update, it was determined that the job 
descriptions need to be updated to clarify classifications titles, and to provide consistency in use of titles. The 
job description in the Personnel Policy Manual for operators is titled Plant Operator, and includes 
requirements for an operator with a Grade I or a Grade II certificate – there is no requirement for a Grade III 
certificate. The Salary Schedule refers to Operator I and Operator II instead of Plant Operator. 
8 The District has a program to provide a 2.5% stipend for those operators who possess a grade certificate 
above that which is required for their regularly assigned position.  Pursuant to the Plant Operator job 
description, there is a requirement for "…a Grade II Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator's Certificate 
issued by the State Water Resources Control Board. [The] District will consider those applicants who 
possess a Grade I Certificate, and can demonstrate their ability to obtain a Grade II within one year of date of 
hire." Therefore, an Operator II, in possession of a Grade III certification is recognized through the 2.5% 
stipend.  

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 007



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 6 of 15 

 
On August 1, 2016, the District Administrator asked me to review the District Personnel 
Policy Manual with regard promotions and the Plant Superintendent's recommendation for 
a promotion for Mr. Jones from Operator II to the vacant Operator III.  
 
On August 2, 2016, the District Administrator received a second performance evaluation 
from the Plant Superintendent with the same promotional recommendation for Mr. Arias to 
Operator III.  
 
The District Administrator was not aware of the Plant Superintendent's intent to 
recommend the promotions, until he (the District Administrator) received the performance 
evaluation. 
 
My analysis and review of the District Personnel Policy Manual promotional process 
included both recommendations and current staffing levels. 
 
Due to the Plant Superintendent having made a recommendation for two promotions to 
Operator III, it was not clear which vacancies existed and which employees were 
appointed to which classification or in an acting capacity. To assist with my review, on 
August 1, 2016 Amy Simpson, Bookkeeper/Secretary was tasked to develop an employee 
roster spreadsheet for comparison to the allocated positions in the Salary Schedule, and it 
was completed on August 2, 2016.  
 
When compared to the allocations in the Salary Schedule, the employee roster indicated 
there was one vacancy for Operator III, and one vacancy for Shift Supervisor. At the 
subsequent meetings referenced below, the Plant Superintendent stated his 
recommendation included using both vacancies to appoint two individuals to Operator III. 
He also stated there were only two qualified individuals interested in promoting. See 
discussion below with regard to this portion of his recommendation.  
 
The Personnel Policy Manual, and other documents provided, including the Employee 
Roster were reviewed by me. My analysis determined an Operator III vacancy must be 
filled through a promotional process to afford all interested employees the opportunity to 
apply9 . However, certain issues must be addressed prior to a promotional process 
occurring. The most pressing issue is that there is not a current job description adopted by 
the Board of Directors for the classification of Operator III. A job description is the standard 
measurement tool to assess an applicant's qualifications. In addition, a question came up 
as to the number of Operator III's needed in the District. 
 
The job description for Plant Operator (Operator I and Operator II) is the only one that 
allows flexibility in staffing, meaning a vacancy for Operator II, may be filled at Operator I, 

                                            
9 Pursuant to Personnel Policy Manual Section 2020 - Recruitment, Section 2. "It is the philosophy of the 
District to promote from within the District, unless it would be in the District's best interest to hire from the 
outside. For this reason, most employment openings as they occur will be announced to all departments. All 
interested employees will be considered for the announced employment opening." [Emphasis added] 
 
 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 008



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 7 of 15 

and the incumbent is required to "demonstrate their ability to obtain a Grade II certificate 
within one year of date of hire." Therefore, filling a vacancy at classification above an 
Operator II classification requires a promotional recruitment. 
 
On August 8, 2016 and August 10, 2016 I shared my findings with the District 
Administrator and the Plant Superintendent. There were also multiple telephone 
conversations throughout this time. Through these discussions the Plant Superintendent 
expressed that he had a plan in place for over a year, and the employees therefore had an 
expectation of a promotion. He stated that they had been working hard toward a goal, and 
now would be denied. The District Administrator was not aware of the Plant 
Superintendent's intent in promoting staff, until he received the completed performance 
evaluations as stated above. However he was aware the Plant Superintendent had been 
rotating assignments among qualified staff to temporarily fill the vacant Shift Supervisor in 
an "acting" capacity.  
 
The Plant Superintendent further expressed that he would like to promote both employees 
to regular assignments as Operator III; Mr. Jones to the vacancy for Operator III, and Mr. 
Arias using the vacancy for Plant Supervisor, however be regularly classified as Operator 
III. He stated that the other qualified employee with a Grade III certificate  was 
not interested in the Operator III assignment. So, there were two qualified employees for 
two vacancies, and no need for a promotional recruitment process. 
 
As the HR Consultant, I expressed a number of concerns with the recommendation of the 
Plant Superintendent. Although I have no authority over any District staff, including the 
Plant Superintendent and the District Administrator, my recommendations are for their 
consideration through their decision-making processes relative to District personnel 
matters.  
 
With regard to making a regular appointment to Operator III using the Shift Supervisor 
vacancy, after our discussions I determined there is no guarantee the incumbent filling the 
vacancy (at a lower level) would be the one promoted. So if an additional Operator III were 
created and filled (total of 3 Operator III's), it could be problematic when it came time to fill 
the Shift Supervisor.10 The vacant Shift Supervisor position has been staffed through 
rotating temporary "acting" assignments. Other staff members have served as the Acting 
Shift Supervisor prior to Mr. Arias who was about to serve his rotation in the temporary 
assignment of Acting Shift Supervisor.11  

                                            
10 I stated there was no authority in the Salary Schedule to have three regular appointments to Operator III, 
therefore, I could not recommend taking that route. 
11 The Shift Supervisor classification has been vacant for about two years. In June 2015, the then District 
Manager approved for the Plant Superintendent to "rotate" qualified employees into the Shift Supervisor 
position in an Acting capacity, each for a temporary period of time. When all the interested qualified 
employees (those with a Grade III certificate) had rotated through, a promotional recruitment could be held to 
select the most qualified candidate to promote to Shift Supervisor. , Operator III was the first to 
serve as the Acting Shift Supervisor from September 2015 to January 2016; Mychal Jones was the second 
to serve as the Acting Shift Supervisor from January 2016 to August 2016 (extended two months) and 
Michael Arias was assigned Acting Shift Supervisor effective August 6, 2016 to approximately February 
2017.  Lab Technician/Operator would be given the opportunity to serve as the Acting Shift 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 009



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 8 of 15 

 
I pointed out this hypothetical example: if at the time of the promotional recruitment 
process for Shift Supervisor, , currently the Lab Technician/Operator applied and 
was the top candidate, then appointed to the position, the District may have an "extra" 
Operator III who would then be assigned to the Lab as the Lab Technician/Operator. As 
the current Lab Technician/Operator,  would've vacated that allocated position, 
and the Lab Technician/Operator classification only requires a Grade II certificate, 
therefore the classification salary range is less than an Operator III.  
 
It would be problematic, in that an Operator III, in the higher salary classification range for 
Operator III, would be paid at a classification level not authorized for the lower level salary 
classification range of Lab Technician/Operator. As I stated above under the Staff 
Authority section, there is no authority for the District Administrator to appoint staff into a 
classification with a higher salary range than allocated by the Board of Directors. There 
was only one vacancy to fill with an Operator III, so only one person could be promoted to 
Operator III. 
 
The Plant Superintendent stated he thought there would be enough collateral duties to 
assign to three Operator III's in the event that occurred, and a recommendation could be 
made to the Board to change staffing levels. 
 
The District Administrator stated that he thought a study/analysis would be a good idea to 
justify staffing level recommendations for the District, prior to seeking Board approval for 
proposed changes (since the District Budget would be affected if there were a business 
need for three Operator III's).  
 
Although there was only one vacancy in Operator III, the Plant Superintendent stated his 
recommendations as written in the performance evaluations would stand. And he stated he 
knew he was recommending two promotions for Operator III, for one vacancy. 
 
Currently all operators are being compensated at the level commensurate with their 
assignments. 
 
Therefore the District Administrator as the appointing authority stated he would factor in 
the creation of a job description for Operator III with the timing of update of the Personnel 
Policy Manual in order to present one comprehensive document to the Board; and the 
staffing study/analysis could occur with the subsequent budget preparation process. 
 
GRIEVANCE ANALYSIS – PAST PRACTICE 
The basis for the grievances are that the District Administrator misapplied or 
misinterpreted the District policy, or failed to follow an established past practice.  If the 
District Administrator failed to follow an established long term past practice, was that past 
practice consistent with the District Personnel Policy Manual? 
 

                                                                                                                                                 
Supervisor, and if after that time another employee has attained a Grade III certificate, he too would be given 
the opportunity to serve in an Acting capacity, before a promotional recruitment opened for Shift Supervisor. 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 010



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 9 of 15 

On August 17, 2016 the Plant Superintendent advised me that he thought the District was 
going to go through their first grievance process. He stated the employees wanted to know 
how to properly file a grievance. I referred him to the Personnel Policy Manual Section 
5010-Grievance as cited above. 
 
The first step in the grievance process is an informal meeting. In the second step, the 
employee can appeal to the Supervisor in writing, using the District Employee Grievance 
Form. The Supervisor responds in writing, and the employee may proceed to the next 
step, which is filing the written documents with the District Administrator. 
 
Mr. Jones' grievance states he and Mr. Arias had an informal conference on August 23, 
2016 with the District Administrator, wherein the District Administrator stated his reasons 
for his decision with regard to the promotional process.  
 
The written documents (Employee Grievance Form) are dated August 24, 2016 and the 
District Administrator received both separately via email on August 30, 2016. Also 
forwarded by email was the written response from the Plant Superintendent to Mr. Arias, 
dated August 23, 2016, which stated the Plant Superintendent could not accommodate the 
requested remedy. 
 
As stated previously the basis for the grievance is the District Administrator not following 
District policy and past practice. The District policies have already been stated and 
reviewed above. As a result of the grievances, a closer review of past practices is 
warranted; yet with the five workday response requirement in the grievance process (under 
the current Personnel Policy Manual), and the state of the District records, an in-depth 
analysis is not possible. The subject grievances brought to light a number of 
inconsistencies with administration of the Salary Schedule and position allocations from a 
historical perspective. 
 
Due to records management of the previous administration a clear and definitive analysis 
of "past practices" may not be possible, even if given more time. Current staff has had a 
difficult time locating historical records, including some resolutions, which have yet to be 
found, as documented in the January 2016 Knudson Report.  
 
Under the previous District Administrator, who resigned in February 2013 it appears the 
same job titles were not consistently used throughout the organizational documents; the 
same procedures and criteria were not consistently used for staff advancements; job 
descriptions were not adopted with the same titles used in the Salary Schedule; and, most 
importantly, as noted in the Knudsen report, key documents were not preserved in an 
orderly manner and maintained on the Plant premises. During 2013, there was a complete 
turnover in District personnel at the administrative levels. 
 
While the administrative (retention) records were returned to the Plant in boxes, the 
records had not been properly maintained and logged into retention pursuant to the 
District's Records Management System. It continues to be difficult for staff to locate certain 
historical records; in addition regular filing of active files also had not occurred. 
 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 011



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 10 of 15 

Since the previous District Administrator left, two retired annuitants served in the capacity 
of part-time District Manager, the first from February to December 2013, and the second 
from December 2013 to September 2015. During that transition time, their priorities were 
more operational than administrative relative to sorting and cataloging the retention files. 
 
The following are examples of “past practice” cited by the Plant Superintendent in support 
of his belief that certain employees should be promoted to Operator III as well as 
discussion of reasons why the alleged past practices do not dictate the need for a 
promotion. 
 
First Example of Past Practice: The first example of a "past practice" cited by the Plant 
Superintendent related to when (in September 2015) he promoted an Operator I to 
Operator II without a promotional recruitment. He stated (after recently speaking with a 
former employee who had been a supervisor), that the former employee stated that there 
were three criteria for promotions; performance, passing the State exams, and open 
(currently available) positions. 
 
Based on the job description for Operator II, that is a potentially proper application of the 
Personnel Policy Manual. However, the reference to "passing the State exams" can mean 
two things. For example, there has been confusion in implementing the 2.5% stipend. 
There are two parts to certification; passing the specific State proctored written exam for 
the next higher grade, and at least 1800 hours an as operator for each grade level (as 
certified by the employing agency). 
 
Taken literally, "passing the State exams" could mean on the date an operator receives 
confirmation from the State that he/she passed the written exam portion toward 
certification; and that is how it has verbally been referred to. However that is not consistent 
with the policy and does not appear to be the way in which the benefit was applied. Based 
on the limited review of documents I was able to do, the timing of the implementation of the 
2.5% benefit is consistent with the first full pay period after the date of the State Board 
issued certificate. 
 
In that sense a reference by staff to "passing the State exam" can also mean an all-
encompassing process of passing the entire process of the written exam and certification 
of hours, if considering "passing the State exams" as a criterion for promotional 
consideration.  
 
Under the list of District benefit contributions adopted with the budget, the language for the 
Higher Operator Grade stipend states: "A one-time increase of 2.5% for operator grade 
obtained above that required for position will be paid upon certification."  
 
The criterion for a District operator to receive the 2.5% stipend is possession of the 
certificate (not simply passing the written portion of the exam). The certificate means the 
operator passed a State proctored written test and has at least 1800 hours of experience 
at that level in applying their knowledge on the job. Some operators choose to take the 
written exam prior to having enough hours to qualify for the certificate. They are not eligible 
for the 2.5% certificate until they have enough certifiable hours as an operator and the 
State issues their certificate. 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 012



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 11 of 15 

 
As discussed above (including in the footnotes), in the job description for Plant Operator 
(listed as Operator I and Operator II on the Salary Schedule), there is a requirement to 
possess a Grade II certificate within one year of appointment to Operator I (entry level to 
journey level). The District has no regular allocations for the Operator I level; rather the 
lowest level of allocation for an operator in the District is Operator II.  
 
A promotion however, is not automatic to Operator II upon attainment of a Grade II 
certificate. As stated by the Plant Superintendent, the incumbent must demonstrate that 
he/she is at the journey level by applying their Grade II knowledge, and have an overall 
above satisfactory performance level (supported by a written performance evaluation) to 
warrant the promotion. A promotion is merit based, not time in service based. 
 
No other District job description has flexibility within it regarding the promotional process. If 
there were a vacancy at a level above Operator II, e.g., Operator III in this instance, and 
only one employee qualified for the vacancy, then considering all the other factors, the 
District Administrator may approve a promotion if he deemed that for business reasons the 
vacancy needed to be filled right away. However, as often occurs in the public sector, 
vacancies are not always immediately filled; the appointing authority may delay the 
process to review staffing levels and reorganize to more efficiently provide service to the 
public, and that has most often occurred in these past few years of difficult finance times. 
The District Administrator may also determine an analysis of the job description may be 
warranted to fit current agency needs, which may delay filling a vacancy. 
 
The example of past practice for the advancement of Operator I to Operator II, therefore, 
does not apply to the process currently needed for a promotion to Operator III. Since there 
are currently three operators who possess a Grade III certificate, whom are all classified 
below the classification range for Operator III, a promotional process is required. 
 
Second Example of Past Practice: The second example cited by the Plant Superintendent, 
refers to when he promoted the current Operator III in August 2014 without a promotional 
process, when the employee attained a Grade III certificate.  At that time the historical 
records accessed do not reflect that there was a funded allocation for Operator III. 
 
In August 2014, there may not have been another qualified employee with a Grade III 
certificate at an Operator II level; therefore, the method used at that time may have been 
consistent with the Personnel Policy Manual, so long as the performance evaluation 
supported the promotion and a vacancy did indeed exist for the Operator III classification. 
No promotional process would've been required, because there was only one qualified 
candidate with a Grade III certificate, for a vacant Operator III classification, and the 
promotion was supported by his documented performance. 
 
In response to the grievances, with regard to the referenced past practice promotion to 
Operator III, the available Salary Schedules from 2010 to current were reviewed. In 
October of 2010 the then District Administrator proposed changes to the positions 
allocated in the Salary Schedule through Resolution 2010-281, by recommending to 
"Unfund" the Operator III classification and "Fund" the Operator III (Shift Supervisor) 
classification. Resolution 2010-281 specifically cites the change in staffing levels.  

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 013



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 12 of 15 

 
Since 2010 the approved Salary Schedules show a fluctuation between funding for the 
Operator III and "Operator III (Shift Supervisor)." The Salary Schedules show that if the 
Operator III classification was funded ("1"), the "Operator III (Shift Supervisor)" was not 
funded, therefore not allocated ("0"). 
 
Fiscal year 2013-14 was the first time the classification title of Shift Supervisor (without 
Operator III in the title) appeared, and the title was then consistent with the Shift 
Supervisor job description adopted in February 2005. For fiscal year 2013-14 the Shift 
Supervisor was allocated ("1")  and the Operator III was not ("0"). 
 
The 2014-15 Fiscal Year Budget Salary Schedule shows a "0" allocation for Operator III 
and a "1" for Shift Supervisor. Based on this Salary Schedule, the appropriate action in 
August 2014 would've been a 2.5% stipend, not a promotion to Operator III for the 
operator in the second example of a past practice. 
 
The Plant Superintendent had the option of granting said employee a 2.5% stipend as an 
Operator II, in recognition of the Grade III certificate. However, that is not the option the 
Plant Superintendent chose in this case. If the Board authorized a change in staffing 
levels, to "unfund" Shift Supervisor or another allocated/vacant classification and "fund" an 
Operator III, that resolution/salary schedule has not been located.  
 
Without an allocation for an Operator III, it appears there was no authority to make a 
regular appointment to that classification. Although, there was authority to affect a 
temporary acting assignment to the Operator III level (using the funding from the Shift 
Supervisor or another vacant classification), until the allocation levels needed, could be 
recommended to and adopted by the Board. Due to time limitations in responding to the 
grievance, a through search has not been conducted with regard to this instance. There 
may be more documentation to support the need for the promotion.  
 
However, this example of a past practice is not equivalent to the subject of this grievance, 
because there are currently three qualified Operator III's at this time, and in August 2014, it 
appears there was only one.  
 
In regard to current staffing levels, with the adoption of the 2015-16 Fiscal Year Budget on 
June 3, 2015, a Salary Schedule for fiscal year 2015-16 was not included. The last Salary 
Schedule adopted by the Board previous to that date was when the then District Manager 
made a recommendation to adopt a new salary range for the Plant Superintendent in 
March 2015 through Resolution 2015-326. That Salary Schedule reflects "0" as 
funding/allocation for the Operator III classification and "1" for Shift Supervisor.  
 
In January 2016 there was one incumbent Operator III, and the employee working under 
the Shift Supervisor allocation had recently resigned. A change in staffing levels was 
adopted on January 20, 2016 (pursuant to the staff report), when the Board considered a 
cost of living increase for staff through Resolution 2016-340 as recommended by the Plant 
Superintendent, who was serving as the Interim District Administrator. On that Salary 
Schedule, the allocations show Shift Supervisor "1" and Operator III "2". To affect the 
change, other allocated vacant classifications were replaced. The total number of 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 014



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 13 of 15 

operators remained the same, and full-time staff had increased by one, to capture the 
addition of the full-time District Administrator classification authorized in September 2015; 
the incumbent was hired in April 2016.  
 
On December 15, 2015 the Plant Superintendent as Interim District Administrator, granted 
a 2.5% stipend to Mr. Jones when he attained a Grade III certificate, and the Shift 
Supervisor was vacant. The Plant Superintendent's granting a 2.5% stipend to Mr. Jones 
in November 2015 was the appropriate action to take and it was a change to the action he 
took in August 2014 referenced above. 
 
There is a difference between a regular appointment to a classification versus a temporary 
assignment in an acting capacity. An employee serving in a temporary acting capacity12 
has job rights to return to his/her regularly assigned classification upon completion of the 
temporary assignment; however the employee has no job rights to the acting assignment, 
nor does he/she receive time in service at the acting assignment level. 
 
With regard to Mr. Jones' grievance, he is citing his Acting Shift Supervisor assignment as 
support for being promoted to Operator III. The Plant Superintendent is recommending the 
promotion for Mr. Jones be effective February 2, 2016, which coincides with Mr. Jones' 
temporary assignment to Acting Shift Supervisor.  
 
All employees that have been temporarily assigned to Acting Shift Supervisor received a 
similar letter at the time of the temporary assignment which stated, "As you are aware, per 
District policy by this assignment you are serving as a "substitute" and shall have no rights 
to permanently fill the position, but may compete for the position in a District recruitment 
that may be undertaken to fill the vacant position.  As such, temporary upgrades are not 
recognized as time served in the position toward completion of a probationary period…" 
The Plant Superintendent as Interim District Administrator issued Mr. Jones' letter in 
January 2016. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
Through my 30+ years of full-time public sector employment, and as a former department 
head in a municipality my experience has been that public sector staff may not take any 
action that cannot not be tied back to a policy or procedure as adopted or delegated by the 
elected body that governs the agency. Elected Officials are the policy makers and 
appointed staff deals with the operations of the agency using the authority delegated to 
them through official documents, adopted by the elected body. The documents adopted by 
elected officials are typically agency by-laws, ordinances, resolutions, or minute orders. 
 
As stated at the beginning of this report, through this process, it was determined there is 
no Board approved current District job description for Operator III, and no rule, policy, or 
regulation that requires promotion upon attainment of a Grade III certificate. 
 

                                            
12   Formally knows as a "substitute employee" pursuant to Personnel Policy Manual Section 2000-
Defintions, Section 9. 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 015



Grievance Report September 7, 2016 Page 14 of 15 

The Grade III certificate is already required for the Plant Superintendent and the Shift 
Supervisor. The District has a program to recognize and reward operators with a higher 
Grade certificate than required in their job description, with a 2.5% stipend. 
 
Without a Board approved job description for Operator III, there is no standard by which to 
measure an applicant; as time in service, and proper certification should not be the only 
factors considered for an appointment.  
 
In addition, through the discussions relative to the promotional process, the question has 
been raised about the operational need for staffing multiple Operator III's, in addition to a 
Shift Supervisor. A staffing level study/analysis would be appropriate to examine staffing 
levels. 
 
There are currently three classifications that can address higher-level duties including 
supervision of operations staff; the Plant Superintendent, the Shift Supervisor (currently 
filled in an Acting capacity), and one filled Operator III. If the vacant Operator III is 
maintained, that would be four staff members at a higher level that could supervise a 
subordinate staff of three operators at the Operator II level.  
 
The elected officials of an agency and the public hold the top-level administrator 
accountable to provide services to the public by the most cost effective and efficient means 
possible. The current national trend for direct reports (subordinates) is one supervisor for 
4-7 direct reports; with the most common being 6 direct reports. Back in the 1980's the 
goal was 5 direct reports for each supervisor. Current trends indicate ratio of direct reports 
to a supervisor is increasing.  
 
Since all operators are currently being compensated commensurate with the level at which 
they are working, there is no urgency to update the job description as a priority, and further 
it is the District Administrator's decision as to timing. Given his stated concerns regarding 
the filling of vacancies, his actions to delay the process are warranted and within his 
authority. 
 
The District Administrator did not change District policy in making his decision; nor he did 
he violate or misinterpret the implementation of the District policies. Further the District 
Administrator did not change a long established past practice that was consistent with the 
Personnel Policy Manual and applicable to these two grievances. 
 
Based on the above factors, Mr. Jones does not have a right to the promotion effective 
February 2, 2016, as stated in his grievance because there are three qualified operators 
with a Grade III certificate at this time, therefore under the Personnel Policy Manual a 
promotional recruitment process is required. And Mr. Arias does not have a right to an 
immediate promotional process to fill the vacant position as stated in his grievance 
because the District Administrator as the appointing authority determines the timing of 
promotional process to fill vacancies. 
 
In my professional opinion, the only historical consistent past practice I have found within 
this agency from the previous administration, is a vagueness in documentation regarding 
consistent application of the rules; inconsistent/different terminology used to reference the 

Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 016



Item 7B Attachment No. 3 Page 017



Page 1 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 001

alicia
Typewritten Text



Page 2 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 002



Page 3 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 003



Page 4 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 004



Page 5 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 005



Page 6 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 006



Page 7 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 007



Page 8 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 008



Page 9 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 009



Page 10 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 010



Page 11 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 011



Page 12 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 012



Page 13 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 013



Page 14 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 014



Page 15 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 015



Page 16 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 016



Page 17 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 017



Page 18 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 018



Page 19 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 019



Page 20 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 020



Page 21 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 021



Page 22 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 022



Page 23 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 023



Page 24 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 024



Page 25 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 025



Page 26 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 026



Page 27 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 027



Page 28 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 028



Page 29 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 029



Page 30 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 030



Page 31 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 031



Page 32 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 032



Page 33 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 033



Page 34 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 034



Page 35 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 035



Page 36 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 036



Page 37 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 037



Page 38 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 038



Page 39 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 039



Page 40 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 040



Page 41 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 041



Page 42 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 042



Page 43 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 043



Page 44 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 044



Page 45 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 045



Page 46 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 046



Page 47 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 047



Page 48 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 048



Page 49 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 049



Page 50 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 050



Page 51 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 051



Page 52 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 052



Page 53 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 053



Page 54 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 054



Page 55 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 055



Page 56 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 056



Page 57 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 057



Page 58 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 058



Page 59 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 059



Page 60 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 060



Page 61 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 061



Page 62 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 062



Page 63 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 063



Page 64 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 064



Page 65 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 065



Page 66 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 066



Page 67 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 067



Page 68 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 068



Page 69 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 069



Page 70 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 070



Page 71 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 071



Page 72 of 72 Item 7B Attachment No. 4 Page 072


	Item 1 Agenda 10.19.16
	Item 5A  Draft Minutes of 10-05-2016
	Item 5B WR 10-19-16
	WR 02.04.15

	Item 5C  Financial Review September 2016
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY

	Item 6 Dist and Super Report
	Item 6 - District Ad and Sup Report 10-19-16
	Item 6 Attachemnt 1 final
	cover page
	Stipulated Stay

	Item 6 Attachment 2 (SSLOCSD WTP Redundancy) status letter 10 12 16

	Item 7A - Reserve Policy Implementation
	Item 7B Greivances
	M. Arias Grievance Final
	M. Jones Grievance Final
	Grievance Report - LHRS Redacted Final
	Exhibits to Grievance Report dated 2016 09-07 Final
	Exhibit Scan 1
	Exhibit Scan 2
	Exhibit Scan 3
	Exhibit Scan 4
	Exhibit Scan 5


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Item 7B -Grievance Michael Arias and Michael Jones..pdf
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY




